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One Government Center

Fax (419) 213-4399

Larry A. Kaczala

Lucas County Auditor

Suite 600 Toledo, Ohio 43604-2255

(419) 213-4340

May 10, 2001

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
and Citizens of Lucas County,

As Auditor of Lucas County, | am pleased to present
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

This report contains general purpose financial state-
ments, supplemental financial statements and other
financial and statistical information which provide a com-
plete and full disclosure of all material financial aspects of
Lucas County. This CAFR conforms to generally accepted
accounting principals (GAAP) as set forth by the Govern-
mental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data pre-
sented and the completeness and faimess of the presenta-
tion, including all disclosures, lies with the management of
the County, and in particular the office of the Lucas County
Auditor. In fulfilling this responsibility, the Lucas County
Auditor’s Office has prepared the accompanying financial
statements, schedules and tables. We believe this data
fairly reflects the financial position of the County and the
results of its operations.

The CAFR is presented in three (3) sections: the
Introductory Section, the Financial Section and the
Statistical Section. The Introductory Section contains a
table of contents, this letter of transmittal, a list of elected
officials, an organization chart and a copy of the Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

*
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awarded for the 1999 Lucas County CAFR. The Financial
Section contains our independent auditor’s, Ermnst & Young
LLP, opinion letter, the general purpose financial state-
ments, and relevant supplemental financial statements and
schedules for 2000. The Statistical Section presents
historical, financial, analytical, economic and demographic
information which may be useful for further analysis and
comparisons.

THE COUNTY

The County was formed by an Act of the Ohio General
Assembly on June 20, 1835, in honor of Robert Lucas, then
Governor of Ohio. The elected three-member Board of
County Commissioners function as both the legislative and
executive branch of the County. Each Commissioner
serves a term of four years. In addition to the County Audi-
tor, who serves as chief fiscal officer, there are seven
elected administrative officials, each of whom operate
independently as set forth by Ohio law. These officials are:
Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney,
Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. All of these officials
serve four-year terms. The following judges are elected on
a county-wide basis to oversee the County’s judicial
system: Common Pleas Court Judges, Domestic Relations
Court Judges, Juvenile Court Judges, Probate Court
Judge, and Court of Appeals Judges. Judges are elected
to six-year terms.




REPORTING ENTITY AND SERVICES

In conformity with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 14, all governmental departments,
agencies, institutions, commissions, public authorities, and
other governmental organizations, for which the County has
significant financial accountability, are included in this
CAFR for financial reporting purposes. Financial account-
ability is determined by the County’s ability to appoint a
voting majority of the Board or financial interdependence.

The County provides general governmental services to
its citizens which include: public assistance, health assis-
tance, community related services, civil and criminal justice
systems, road and bridge maintenance, sewer and water-
line construction and maintenance and other general legis-
lative and administrative support services. The County also
operates and maintains the water supply and wastewater
treatment systems. A further discussion of the reporting
entity and its services may be found in Note A of the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND
OUTLOOK

The County is in the center of a trade area comprised
of 14 counties in northwestern Ohio and southeastern
Michigan with a total population of approximately 1.25
million people. The County lies in the central portion of a
triangle formed by the cities of Chicago, Detroit and
Cleveland. The County is in the Toledo Metropolitan
Statistical Area (MSA) and is the 62nd largest of the 284
MSAs and consolidated metropolitan statistical areas
(CMSAs) in the United States.

The County’s economy, historically associated with the
glass and automotive industries, has become increasingly
diversified. While the County remains the home of four of
the nation’s largest glass companies, DiamlerChrysler AG,
General Motors Corporation and Dana Corporation also
continue to be major private employers in the County.

The County’s unemployment rate for 2000 was 4.9%,
which is .8% higher than the statewide rate of 4.1%, and
.9% higher than the national rate of 4.0%.

Three of the 2000 Fortune 500 corporations have their
headquarters in the County. The County is also one of the
larger oil refining centers between Chicago and the eastern
seaboard with BP Oil Co. and Sun Refining and Marketing
Company, Inc.

BP Oil Co. has constructed an approximately $235
million upgrade to its Toledo area refinery, which will be
one of its two remaining refineries in the United States.
The improvements will concentrate on improving BP Oil’'s
ability to process heavy, sour crude oil.

DiamlerChrysler AG is proceeding with a $1.2 billion
investment to construct a 1.1 million square-foot Jeep
assembly plant on Stickney Avenue in Toledo. Construc-
tion beganin 1998. Vehicles began rolling off the assem-
bly line in 2001. The project will retain nearly 4,900 jobs.

MAJOR COUNTY INITIATIVES

e Current Year Projects

Lucas County continues to promote economic develop-
ment throughout the area. Lucas County officials and
management continue to work closely with state and local
governments, corporations, companies, small businesses,
labor unions and charitable organizations to improve and
expand business opportunities and the standard of living.
The following are highlights of some of the activities Lucas
County is concerned with:

«  During 2000, the County Engineer completed or let to
construction $8.2 million in infrastructure improvement
or construction projects. The County spent $1.4 million
in bridge replacement and repair projects, $2.5 million
in major roadway improvement projects, $2.6 million in
minor widening and resurfacing projects, and another
$1.7 million for miscellaneous roadway preservation
and maintenance projects and drainage projects.

« In 2000, the board of county commissioners began
renovation and expansion of the Emergency Services
Building which will act as a consolidated emergency
communication center for the Lucas County sheriff, 9-
1-1, Emergency Medical Services, the Emergency
Management Agency, and the City of Toledo’s Police
and Fire Dispatch.

e« The new Lucas County Criminal Justice Center, to
include an expanded juvenile detention facility is under
construction. The facility is expected to cost $23
million and will be completed in March 2001. The



County will receive a $6.5 million state grant and a
$500 thousand federal grant to assist with the construc
tion costs. The County issued-$14.9 million in notes in
April, 2000.

« A site was acquired and ground was broken for the
construction of the Lucas County Ballpark. The
Ballpark will be the home minor league baseball’s
Toledo Mud Hens. The team will relocate to the new
facility in 2002 from their current facility at the Lucas
County Recreation Center. The county issued $20
million in economic development revenue bonds and
$6 million in economic development revenue bonds
anticipation notes in March, 2001.

«  Construction of the $1.2 billion Jeep plant continues.
The county has pledged $2 million by 2002 to help the
City of Toledo acquire and improve the site for the new
plant.

« Future Projects

The County will continue to provide a variety of ser-
vices required to meet the needs of its citizens and actively
support economic development in the area. We look
forward to the following significant activities made possible
by the citizens of Lucas County and its government:

« The Board of County Commissioners acquired from
the City of Toledo a site at the corner of Speilbusch
and Cherry to locate a new courthouse for the 6th
district Court of Appeals. The cost of the facility is
estimated at $7 million and will be shared by the six
counties based on the population of each county.
Construction is expected to begin in 2001.

» The county expects to complete construction of a
training and conference center in 711 Adams in
downtown Toledo. The $13 million dollar center is a
joint project with the Board of County Commissioners
and the Lucas County Children’s Services Board.
Construction is expected to be completed in June
2001. The training Center will be under the
responsibility of the newly created Training and
Organizational Development Division of the Board of
County Commissioners Department of Human Re-
sources.

+  The Board of County Commissioners and the judges of
the Common Pleas Court are looking into the needs of
the court over the next fifteen years. Alternatives to

meeting the anticipated space needs of the court and
how best to meet those needs while preserving the
historic Lucas County Courthouse will be examined.

« The County Engineer has established a 5 year capital
improvement plan that anticipates improvements of
$58.5 miillion. Infrastructure improvements planned for
the next 5 years include $7.4 million for bridge improve-
ments, $42.6 million for roadway improvement, and
$8.5 million for drainage improvements.

+ Departmental Highlights

Annually, the County selects a department to highlight
for its efforts and accomplishments. In 2000, the Lucas
County Board of Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disbilities (LCBMR/DD) has been selected for review.

The LCBMR/DD is a special revenue fund of the
County. Their commitment is to enhance the
independence, community acceptance, and physical,
mental and emotional well-being of individuals who have
mental retardation and developmental disabilities. They
are supported by property tax levies along with various
state and federal grants and reimbursements. Some of the
significant accomplishments in 2000 are as follows:

* In 2000, they became one of the first county boards of
MR/DD in Ohio to be fully certified under the state’s
new accreditation process. Kenneth Ritchey, the
Director of the Ohio Department of MR/DD, said, “this
certification should serve as an assurance to the
people of Lucas County that its county board and
county government are acting responsibly and effec-
tively in caring for people with disabilities and at the
same time working to ensure that county and state
dollars are being spent wisely”.

« The national commission on accreditation, CARF,
awarded the LCBMR/DD a three-year certification, its
highest, concluding that their program “is well orga-
nized to meet the current and emerging needs of the
people it serves, their families, and the community.”

»  School Bus Fleet Magazine recognized their yellow bus
fleet as “the most exemplary” in Ohio.

* Lott Industries, a discretely presented component unit
of the County, which provides employment opportuni-
ties, maintained its QS 9000 certification from the auto
industry, proving that persons with MR/DD can be
viable, productive members of the community
workforce.



ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

The County’s day-to-day accounting records are
maintained on a basis other than GAAP. For financial
reporting purposes, the accounting records for all Govern-
mental and Fiduciary Funds are converted to the modified
accrual basis, whereby revenues are recognized when
measurable and available within the business cycle (within
60 days after year end) and expenditures are recognized
when the related fund liability is incurred. The accounting
records for the Proprietary Funds are converted to the
accrual basis, whereby revenues are recognized when
goods or services are measurable and earned, and ex-
penses are recognized as incurred.

A further discussion of the three (3) methods of
accounting (non-GAAP, modified accrual and accrual)
and a reconciliation of non-GAAP basis to GAAP basis of
accounting may be found in Note B and Note N, respec-
tively, of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

Under Ohio law, the Lucas County Board of Commis-
sioners must adopt an appropriations budget by January
1st of a given year, or adopt a temporary appropriation
measure with final passage of a permanent budget by
April 1st. No expenditure can be made from any budget-
ary account without the Certificate of the County Auditor
certifying that funds are available or in the process of
collection. When a purchase order is issued or a contract
is entered into by any County department or agency, the
County Auditor encumbers the necessary funds to pay for
the expenditure. Contracts or purchase orders are
rejected and are invalid under Ohio law if sufficient
funds are not available to permit the County Auditor to
certify the transaction. A further discussion of the budget-
ary accounting system and its controls may be found in
Note B of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The County Auditor issues a monthly budget report to
the Board of Commissioners and to all departments and
agencies showing the monthly and year-to-date expendi-
tures, encumbrances, and the cash balances, as well as
the unencumbered balance by fund and account. On a
quarterly basis, these reports are made public and are
available to the news media.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management of the County is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal control designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the
assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
The design of the interal control also recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to
be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

As arecipient of federal and state financial assistance,
the County is responsible for ensuring that adequate
internal control is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs.
This internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by
management.



GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUNCTIONS

« General Fund

Significant Changes in the General Fund.

A comparative schedule of the significant financial
results of the General Fund for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2000 and 1999 on a GAAP basis follows:

GENERAL FUND
Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Other Financing Sources (Uses)
(Amounts in 000's)
2000 1999
Actual Actual
Revenues:
TAXES © o et $84,419 $83,053
Charges forservices ............... 11,207 11,810
Licenses and permits ............... 44 44
Finesand forfeits .................. 557 672
Special assessments . .............. 24 23
Intergovernmental revenue .......... 18,052 16,824
Investmentincome ................. 13,221 10,809
Change in fair value of investments . . .. 4,707 (3,282)
Miscellaneous revenue . ............ 1,906 2,946
Totalrevenues . .................. $134,137 $122,899
Expenditures:
General government ............... $56,804 $ 54,332
Publicsafety ..................... 29,824 29,653
Publicworks . . ... 226 183
Health .......... ..o, 713 880
HumanServices . .. ..........oou... 1,334 1,119
Conservation and recreation ......... 1,882 1,923
Miscellaneous .................... 546 761
Total expenditures . ............... $91,329 $88.851
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of capital lease transactions . . $ - $681
Operating transfersout ............. (34.202) (37,166)
Total other financing sources (uses) .. $(34.202) $(36.485)

Increase\
(Decrease)
2000 -1999

$681
(2.964)
2,283




The General Fund accounts for all financial resources
not accounted for in another fund. The major revenue
sources are sales and property taxes, charges for services,
investment earings, and state and local government fund
receipts. The General Fund is the operating fund of the
County.

Tax revenue increased by $1.4 million in 2000, a 1.6%
increase from 1999. This increase is attributed to addi-
tional sales tax revenues and new property tax levies.

Intergovernmental revenue increased by $1.2 million,
a 7.3% increase from 1999. This was attributed to the
timing of reimbursements from various federal, state, and
local governmental agencies.

Investment Income increased by $2.4 million, a 22.3%
increase from 1999, and the net change in fair value of
investments increased $8.0 million. This was a result of a
volatile investment market at the end of 1999 and 2000.

General government and public safety expenditures
increased by $2.5 million from 2000 to 1999. The 4.5%
increase is mainly attributed to providing more services to
the public, increase in maintenance costs, including the
purchase of vehicles and equipment, increasing correc-
tional facilities’ cost and across the board wage increases.
Human Services expenditures increased by $215 thousand
in 2000, a 19.2% increase from 1999. This is due to an
increase in payments by the Veterans Service commission.

Operating transfers (out) decreased by $3.0 million in
2000, a 8.0% decrease from 1999. This is attributed to a
increase in the amount of funding provided to the Capital
Improvements Fund.

« Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds consist primarily of Public
Assistance and Child Support Enforcement Agency (human
and social service programs), Community Mental Health,
Children Services Board, Board of Mental Retardation, 911
Emergency Telephone System (voter approved property
tax levies to support health, welfare and other community
service activities), Motor Vehicle and Gas tax (road and
bridge maintenance program) and all federal and state
grants.

In 2000, all Special Revenue Funds, on a combined
basis, generated an excess of approximately $1.6 million in
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revenues and other resources over expenditures and other
uses, increasing the combined fund balance from $79.9
million to $81.5 million.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation
of resources for, and payment of, interest and principal on
long-term debt reported in the County’s General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. Interest and principal retire-
ment amounted to $15.3 million in 2000 and $15.9 million
in 1999.

Capital Project Funds

Capital outlay expenditures, including interest of $253
thousand totaled $41.8 million in 2000. Capital Project
notes of $19.5 million were outstanding at December 31,
2000.

The Capital Project Funds are used to account for
capital projects, improvements, renovations and acquisi-
tions. The primary resources are proceeds of bonds, short-
term notes, and property taxes.

PROPRIETARY OPERATIONS

Enterprise Funds

The Enterprise Funds provide water and sewer ser-
vices to several areas of Lucas and Wood Counties. Solid
waste disposal and parking facilities are also operated by
the County. The Enterprise Funds include the Sanitary
Engineer, ~ Water Supply System, Sewer System,
Wastewater Treatment, Solid Waste, and Parking Facilities.
County Enterprise Funds recorded a total increase in
retained earnings of $2.2 million during 2000.

Internal Service Funds

The Internal Service Funds provide services to County
departments and charges are billed as services are used.
The Internal Service Funds operated by the County in 2000
were Central Supplies, Vehicle Maintenance, County-City
Telephone, Self-Funded Health Insurance, Self-Funded
Dental Insurance, Centralized Drug Testing, Risk Retention
Insurance, and Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation.
Internal Service Funds recorded a total increase in retained
earnings of $2.6 million during 2000.



FIDUCIARY OPERATIONS

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the County
in a trustee capacity, or as an agent, for individuals, private
organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
The Fiduciary Funds maintained by the County are Expend-
able Trust Funds and Agency Funds.

At December 31, 2000, assets held in Trust and
Agency Funds totaled $37.3 million. Liabilities relating to
Trust and Agency Funds amounted to $31.7 million.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION
(Amounts in 000's)

General obligation bonds -voted/ unvoted

Special assessment bonds -
governmental commitment

Total bonds
General obligation notes

OWDA loans - special assessment - governmental
commitment

OWDA loans - proprietary

Total OWDA debt
OPWC loans - governmental commitment
OPWC loans - proprietary

Total OPWC debt

Total outstanding debt

Total debt per capita

Net general bonded debt per capita (net of amount
available in debt service fund)

Ratio of net general bonded debt to total
assessed valuation
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Moody’s Investors Service rated the County’s bonds
at “A1", Standard and Poors rated the County’s bonds at
“A+”, and Fitch Investors Service rated the County’s bonds
at “A+”, and the County’s notes were not rated. In 2000,
the County issued $1.6 million in bonds and $19.5 million
in short-term notes.

The exhibit on the previous page summarizes the
bonds and notes outstanding, and various debt related
statistics, as of December 31, 2000.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The County Treasurer utilizes cash management and
forecasting techniques and procedures to provide for
efficient and optimum use of the County’s cash resources
as permitted by applicable State of Ohio law.

Among the County’s many investments, the County
participates in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio
(STAR OHIO) Investment pool. The statewide investment
pool is administered by the Treasurer of the State of Ohio.

Certain deposits are collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust depart-
ment or agent but not in the County’s name. The pool of
securities so pledged must have a current market value at
least equal to 110% of all public monies on deposit with the
depository including the amount covered by federal insur-
ance.

Cash resources of all funds with the exception of
Water, Sewer, and certain Fiduciary Funds are pooled for
investment purposes. Currently, interest income derived
from these pooled resources is credited to the County’s
General Fund with the exception of the equitable share
distributed to the Self-Funded Health Insurance fund and
the Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax fund.

INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS
(Amounts in 000's)

Investments and Earnings 2000 1999
Total investments and

Deposits at year-end: $ 243,157 $ 225,510
Interest revenue: 13,221 10,809

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County Risk Manager monitors and directs the
entire insurance program of Lucas County. The County is
self-insured for a portion of its general business insurance
and insurance coverage after $500 thousand per occur-
rence.

The County participates in the State of Ohio Retro-
spective Rated Workers’ Compensation program with a
maximum liability of $300 thousand per accident.

Both programs, along with the self-funded health
program for dental benefits, provide savings with proper
risk management and loss control.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in this report on page 18 is an unqualified
audit opinion rendered by Ernst & Young LLP with respect
to the general purpose financial statements for the fund
types and the account groups of the County as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2000. As part of the annual
preparation of a CAFR, the County subjects all the financial
statements to an annual independent audit. This annual
audit arrangement serves to strengthen the County’s
accounting, budgetary and internal control of financial and
operational systems.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR
EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The County prepared its first CAFR in 1984 in accor-
dance with the program guidelines for the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (Certifi-
cate) awarded by the Government Finance Officers Associ-
ation of the United States and Canada (GFOA). Each
annual report must also satisfy generally accepted account-
ing principles and disclose applicable legal compliance
requirements. The County was awarded the Certificate for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 1984 - 1999.

The Certificate is valid for a period of one year. We
believe that our current report continues to conform to the
guidelines and requirements of the program and will be
submitted to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another Certificate.
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Lucas County,
Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 1999

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

S e
W ke

Executive Director
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Financial Section

Currently under construction in downtown Toledo is a
baseball stadium for Toledo’s AAA baseball team, the Mud
Hens. Above is a photograph of a model of the stadium,
and an artist's drawing of the main entrance to the sta-
dium. The team will locate to the new facility in 2002 from

17 -

their current facility at the Lucas County Recreation
Center. In March, 2001, the county issued $20 million in
economic development revenue bonds and $6 million in
economic development revenue bond anticipation notes
to finance the project.



i” ERNST& YOUNG & Ernst & Young Lip & Phone: (419) 244-8000

One SeaGate Fax:  (419) 244-4440
Toledo, Ohio 43604 www.ey.com

Report of Independent Auditors

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Lucas County, Ohio as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2000, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These
general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our
audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented
component units, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements
are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely presented component
units were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general
purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Lucas
County, Ohio, as of December 31, 2000, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its
proprietary funds and discretely presented component unit for the year then ended in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note T to the accompanying general purpose financial statements, during 2000,
the County changed its method of accounting to include infrastructure in the General Fixed
Assets Account Group.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4,
2001 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Ernst & Young LLP is a member of Ernst & Young International, Ltd.
- 18 —



i” ERNS T& YOUNG & Ernst & Young LLP

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements of the County, taken as a whole. The combining, individual fund and individual
account group financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose
financial statements of the County. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion,
based on our audit and the report of other auditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the statistical tables and schedules as listed in the table of contents and therefore

express no opinion thereon.
émi ¥ MLLP

May 4, 2001

- 19 -
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Combined Chart of All Governmental Funds
e Total Expenditures
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED

Assets and other debits:

Pooled cash and cash

equivalents (Note C).........c..cooovviiiiiiiiiie

Pooled investments (Note C)............c.coooveevennnn.

Segregated cash accounts (Note C)...................

Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables)

Special assessments................cccceeiii.
Accruedinterest...............ccooeeiiiiiiiiil

Due from other funds (Note D).........ccccccocvviene
Due from other governments................cccceouveeee.
Inventory: materials and supplies.........................
Property, plant and equipment (Notes E and T)

Land improvements................cocoeieieeeinnn.
Buildings, structures and
improvements...........c.cooecevveeeiieeiieeneeen
Infrastructure (Note T)..........cccooviiiiinnns
Furniture, fixtures and equipment...............
Less: accumulated depreciation.................
Construction-in-progress (Note E).............
Prepaid items.............occoooviieiiiieeeee
Amount available in debt service fund..................
Amount to be provided for retirement of
general long-term obligations....................

Total assets and other debits....................

COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

General Special Debt Capital
Fund Revenue Service Projects
$3,389 $13,060 $853 $4,186
22,125 78,798 5,144 25,249
26,865 66,277 - 6,148
93 128 - -
1 - 19,776 -
2,705 - - -
- 453 - -
585 6,431 86 -
- 218 - -
$55,763 $165,365 $25,859 $35,583

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS Discretely
General General 2000 Totals Presented
Internal Trust and Fixed Long Term (Memorandum Component
Enterprise Service Agency Assets Obligations Only) Units
$1,089 $4,509 $25,155 $- $- $52,241 $988
6,573 27,206 4,842 - - 169,937 9,187
- - 7,260 - - 7,260 -
- - - - - 99,290 -
4,035 6 - - - 4,262 1,953
- - - - - 19,777 -
- - - - - 2,705 -
- - - - - 453 -
- 538 - - - 538 -
- - - - - 7,102 -
18 215 - - - 451 328
402 83 - 14,940 - 15,425 877
102,191 - - - - 102,191 -
23,287 30 - 125,046 - 148,363 7,905
- - - 273,763 - 273,763 -
12,963 1,191 - 25,811 - 39,965 3,853
(53,450) (1,080) - - - (54,530) (3,826)
2,265 - - 36,053 - 38,318 1,707
- - - - - 0 234
- - - - 6,139 6,139 -
- - - - 103,808 103,808 -
$99,373 $32,698 $37,257 $475,613 $109,947 $1,037,458 $23,206

continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED

COMPONENT UNITS-(continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

General Special Debt Capital
Fund Revenue Service Projects
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable.................c.occoiiiniiiii $1,591 $13,728 $- $2,685
Accrued wages and benefits.................ccocon. 3,568 4,948 - -
Due to other funds (Note D)..........ccccoevieninnins 103 83 - -
Due to other governments..............cccooeiiennne. 1,818 4 - -
Claims payable - current (Note S)........................ - - - -
Deferred revenue (Note J)........cccceevvieicnnnnne. 15,713 65,097 19,688 6,035
Matured bonds payable...............ccccccoiiiiiin. - - 16 -
Matured interest payable................ccccooeiiii - - 16 -
Unapportioned monies............ccocceeeeniiiiiccnninennn. - - - -
DEPOSIES.......vvieiiiiceiee e - - - -
Payroll withholdings.............cccoocviiiiiiinis - - - -
Notes payable (Note F)............cccooooiiiiiiiiiie - - - 19,460
Bonds payable (Note G).........c.cccoeviiiiiiiiiie - - - -
OWDA loans payable (Note G)...........cccceeevrnennn. - - - -
OPWC loans payable (Note G)..............ccccoeeee - - - -
Other long term obligations..................c........ - - - -
Claims payable-noncurrent (Note S).................. - - - -
Landfill obligation-noncurrent (Note Q)................ - - - -
Obligations under capital leases (Note G)............ - - - -
Total liabilities..................ccocvvieeeeeen, 22,793 83,860 19,720 28,180
Equity and other credits:
Contributed capital (Note M)............cccciii. - - - -
Investments in general fixed assets..................... - - - -
Retained earnings: unreserved................ccccce.... - - - -
Fund balances
Reserved-
Reserved for encumbrances...................... 1,963 14,123 - 5,686
Reserved forinventory.............ccccceveine - 218 - -
Reserved for loans receivable..................... - 453 - -
Unreserved-
Designated for debt service........................ - - 6,139 -
Designated for charity..............ccccocenieee - 104 - -
Undesignated................oooovieiiiiie 31,007 66,607 - 1,717
Total equity and
othercredits...........ccccovevcvevevenininn, 32,970 81,505 6,139 7,403
Total liabilities, equity,
and othercredits............ccccccvvveuene.... $55,763 $165,365 $25,859 $35,583

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS Discretely

General General 2000 Totals Presented
Internal Trust and Fixed Long Term (Memorandum Component
Enterprise Service Agency Assets Obligations Only) Units

$180 $699 $40 $- $- $18,923 $1,608
605 155 2 - 17,230 26,508 281
2 350 - - - 538 -
- - - - 1,822 -
- 3,424 - - - 3,424 -
- - - 106,533 20

- - - 64,853 64,853 1,235

20,928 - - - 2,995 23,923 -
336 - - - 1,807 2,143 -

- - - 0 3,292

- - - - 12,255 12,255 -
- 26 - - 10,807 10,833 -

22,053 7,483 31,654 - 109,947 325,690 6,466

- - 71,995 -
- - - 475,613 - 475,613 -
5,325 25,215 - - - 30,540 1,145

. . ) ; - 21,772 -
- - - 218 -
- - - 453 -

. ] - 6,139 -
- - - 104 -
- - 5603 - - 104,934 15,595

77,320 25,215 5,603 475,613 - 711,768 16,740

$99,373 $32,698 $37,257 $475,613 $109,947 $1,037,458 $23,206
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES, EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS,
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

General Special Debt Capital
Fund Revenue Service Projects
Revenues:
Taxes (Note J)........ooveveiiiiicceceeeee, $84,419 $65,264 $5,428 $5,718
Charges for services...............c.ccccocoeveveeinnnn. 11,207 9,466 - -
Licenses and permits....................cc.ocoooveieennn. 44 - - -
Fines and forfeits..............c..c..c.ocooooiiiiie, 557 130 - -
Special assessments.............cooooveeeeieeeiiie 24 - 1,614 706
Intergovernmental revenue (Note K).................. 18,052 151,322 ’ - 3,291
Investmentincome..............ccoooviiveieiiieie 13,221 - - -
Net change in fair value of investments.............. 4,707 - - -
Miscellaneous revenue..................c..cccccooceei.. 1,906 14,502 1,637 2,328
Total revenues..................ccoceeeveieceeeeen.. 134,137 240,684 8,579 12,043
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive................................ 21,660 11,137 - -
Judicial.........oocoooeiiiiiii 35,144 14,670 - -
Publicsafety..............cccoovemoeieieeeeceeeee 29,824 21,314 - -
Public WOrKS............ccooviiiii e 226 15,546 - -
Health........ooooii e, 713 86,938 - -
Human services.................ccooovveiieiiiii 1,334 96,221 - -
Conservation and recreation.............c...cccc....... 1,882 4,394 - -
Miscellaneous.................cccooveveoeeiieeieeeen 546 4,053 - -
Capital outlay .............coccooovevieiiiii - - - 41,516
Debt service:
Principal retirement................................ - - 10,233 -
Interest and fiscal charges...................c............ - - 5,107 253
Total expenditures.........................cc.cceeen.... 91,329 254,273 15,340 41,769
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures..................cccccueeeeeeeeeeeaeennn 42,808 (13,589) (6,761) (29,726)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of bonds.............c..oocooooiiiiioiiee - - - 1,560
Operating transfers in (Note O)......................... - 15,556 6,914 12,054
Operating transfers (out) (Note O)................... (34,202) (322) - (1,596)
Total other financing sources (uses)............. (34,202) 15,234 6,914 12,018
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) ex-
penditures and other uses (Note N).............. 8,606 1,645 163 (17,708)
Fund balance at
beginning ofyear..................cccoooeoeieiiiceiieee, 24,364 79,860 5,986 25,111
Fund balance atend of year................................ $32,970 $81,505 $6,139 $7,403

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FIDUICARY FUND
TYPES

Expendable
Trust
Funds

2000 Totals
(Memorandum
Only)

Discretely
Presented
Component
Units

$160,829
20,673
44

687
2,344
172,665
13,221
4,707
23,170

$-
6,346

3,535

1,528

398,340

32,797
49,814
51,138
15,772
87,651
97,555

6,276

7,607
41,516

10,233
5,360

11,409

3,008

405,719

10,392

(111)

(7,379)

1,560
34,524
(36,120)

1,017

(36)

(111)

5,714

(7,415)

141,035

1,017

14,578

$5,603

$133,620

$15,595




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

Revenues:

Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Special assessments
Fines and forfeits
Intergovernmental revenue
Investment income

Expenditures:
Current:

General government:
Legislative and executive
Judicial..........................

Public safety

Public works

Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

(Amounts in 000's)

Capital outlay.....................

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..........

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of notes

Total other financing sources (uses)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses (Note N)..

Fund balance at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund balance at end of year

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES - (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

General Fund

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$82,336 $85,064 $2,728
11,473 11,250 (223)
57 44 (13)
40 25 (15)
495 617 122
17,920 18,004 84
9,290 12,566 3,276
1,722 2,358 636
123,333 129,928 6,595
27,326 24,922 2,404
36,490 35,415 1,075
31,661 30,181 1,480
346 234 112
1,277 776 501
1,240 1,228 12
2,100 2,024 76
1,230 595 635
- - 0
- - 0
- - 0
101,670 95,375 6,295
21,663 34,553 12,890
- - 0
- - 0
- - 0
(32,445) (32,263) 182
(32,445) (32,263) 182
(10,782) 2,290 13,072
14,829 14,829 0
2,398 2,398 0
$6,445 $19,5617 $13,072
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The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Special Revenue

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$64,666 $65,564 $898
9,891 9,624 (267)
- - 0
- - 0
144 130 (14)
165,210 151,310 (13,900)
- - 0
13,622 14,485 863
253,533 241,113 (12,420)
13,207 10,582 2,625
19,773 17,537 2,236
28,254 25,644 2,610
20,725 17,655 3,070
105,497 95,363 10,134
109,244 97,140 12,104
5,373 4,454 919
3,955 3,798 157
- - 0
- - 0
- - 0
306,028 272,173 33,855
(52,495) (31,060) 21,435
- - 0
- - 0
13,053 15,556 2,503
(3,727) - 3,727
9,326 15,556 6,230
(43,169) (15,504) 27,665
63,786 63,786 0
22,373 22,373 0
$42,990 $70,655 $27 665

29

Debt Service

Variance:
Revised Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$4,968 $5,428 460
- - 0

- - 0

- 1,669 1,669

- - 0

- - 0

- - 0

1,466 1,537 71
6,434 8,634 2,200
- - 0

- - 0

- - 0

- - 0

- - 0

- - 0

- - 0

- - 0

- - 0
8,498 8,485 13
4,373 4,331 42
12,871 12,816 55
(6,437) (4,182) 2,255
- - 0

- - 0
5,403 4,403 (1,000)
(443) - 443
4,960 4,403 (557)
(1,477) 221 1,698
5776 5776 0

- - 0
$4,299 $5,997 $1,698

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES - (continued)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Capital Projects

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES....eeeeeeeee e $5,530 $5,747 $217
Charges for SErviCes.............uuveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies - - 0
Licenses and permits..............ccooeeeii - - 0
Special assessments..............cccccviii - 706 706
Fines and forfeits...............cooooeeiiiiiiiiis - - 0
Intergovernmental revenue....................ooooeiiiiiiiiiiiinnn. - $3,291 3,291
Investment income............cccooiiiii - - 0
Miscellaneous revVenUE. ............c.ccevvveeeeiiiiiieiiieneeeieeeeees 38,313 2,800 (35,513)
Total revenues...............cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeiiivieiieeieeeeanan, 43,843 12,544 (31,299)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive.......................... - - 0
Judicial........... - - 0
Public safety.........ccoooooi - - 0
PublicWorks. ... - - 0
Health...........o e - - 0
HUMaN SeIVICES..........oooiiiiiiiiiiieeec - - 0
Conservation and recreation.....................c... - - 0
Miscellaneous..................oiineiiiiii - - 0
Capital outlay............ccoveeiiiii 65,695 50,041 15,654
Debt service:
Principal retirement.................c.co 5,920 5,920 0
Interest and fiscal charges.............ccooooveeiiiiiiiiiiin, 253 253 0
Total expenditures.................cccccccuuueuiiiiiiineinnnnnnns 71,868 56,214 15,654
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.......... (28,025) (43,670) (15,645)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of NOtES...........coiiviiiiiieii 20,710 19,460 (1,250)
Proceeds of boNdS............oooiiiiiiiiii - 1,560 1,560
Operating transfers in.............ccccccciii s 5,163 12,054 6,891
Operating transfers (out)................ocoooi (3,657) - 3,657
Total other financing sources (USes).......................... 22,216 33,074 10,858
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses (Note N).. (5,809) (10,596) (4,787)
Fund balance at beginning of year................................. 20,761 20,761 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......................... 11,086 11,086 0
Fund balance at end of year............ccccccceeeiinnn, $26,038 $21,251 ($4,787)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Totals (Memorandum Only)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$157,500 $161,803 $4,303
21,364 20,874 (490)
57 44 (13)
40 2,400 2,360
639 747 108
183,130 172,605 (10,525)
9,290 12,566 3,276
55,123 21,180 (33,943)
427,143 392,219 (34,924)
40,533 35,504 5,029
56,263 52,952 3,311
59,915 55,825 4,090
21,071 17,889 3,182
106,774 96,139 10,635
110,484 98,368 12,116
7,473 6,478 995
5,185 4,393 792
65,695 50,041 15,654
14,418 14,405 13
4,626 4,584 42
492 437 436,578 55,859
(65,294) (44,359) 20,935
20,710 19,460 (1,250)
0 1,560 1,560
23,619 32,013 8,394
(40,272) (32,263) 8,009
4,057 20,770 16,713
(61,237) (23,589) 37,648
105,152 105,152 0
35,857 35,857 0

$79,772 $117,420 $37,648
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Discretely
2000 Totals Presented
Internal (Memorandum Component
Enterprise Service Only) Unit
Operating revenues:
Charges for ServiCes............cccoeveveeeenieeeecnenenns $9,925 $24,797 $34,722 $635
Miscellaneous...............oouveeeveiiiiiiieiiee e 3,149 580 3,729 1,375
Total operating revenues...................ccccccco.... 13,074 25,377 38,451 2,010
Operating expenses:
Personal ServiCes.............ccocveevvveeecieeeeieeeeen, 4,082 1,256 5,338 669
Contract services...........ocoveeiiiiciiiieeeeeee 2,521 2,635 5,156 1,360
Materials and supplies.............c..cooeeviierieneinens 530 1,076 1,606 .
Heat, light and power.............ccccccoviiiiiniiniens 887 - 887 -
Depreciation..............ccooveieierenieienee e 3,326 64 3,390 39
ClaiMS. ... - 390 390 -
Change in provision for worker's
compensation claims.............ccccoveiiiiininnn - (361) (361) -
Employee medical benefits.............cc.ccccoce - 18,093 18,093 -
Total operating expenses...............cccccccceeeeen. 11,346 23,153 34,499 2,068
Operating income (I0SS)..........cccceevevevveeeennen. 1,728 2,224 3,952 (58)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interestincome............ocooeivieiiii - 371 371 58
Interest and fiscal charges.............ccccoieveenne (1,356) (3) (1,359) -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets......................... (23) - (23) -
Total nonoperating revenues
(EXPENSES)........ooveeeeeeeeeeee e (1,379) 368 (1,011) 58
Income (loss) before operating
HrANSTEIS........ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 349 2,592 2,941 0
Operating transfers in (Note O)..............cccccee. 1,617 - 1,617 -
Operating transfers (out) (Note O).................... (21) - (21) -
NEtINCOME..........ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 1,945 2,592 4,537 0
Depreciation on fixed assets acquired by
federal capital grants.............ccccoocociiii 276 - 276 -
Increase in retained earnings......................... 2,221 2,592 4,813 0
Retained earnings at beginning
OF YEAT.......oiiiiiieee e 3,104 22,623 25,727 1,145
Retained earnings at end of year....................... $5,325 $25,215 $30,540 $1,145

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Discretely
2000 Totals Presented
Internal (Memorandum Component
Enterprise Service Only) Unit
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers.......................... $13,051 $25,309 $38,360 $2,023
Cash paid to suppliers.............cccoeivnenniiiennnn (3,957) (22,813) (26,770) (1,175)
Cash paid to employees.............cccccoeeiriiiinnnnn. (4,055) (1,262) (5,317) (605)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities. ... 5,039 1,234 6,273 243
Cash flows from noncapital
financing activities:
Operating transfers in.................ccoooinnn 1,617 - 1,617 -
Operating transfers (out).............cccooovennn (21) - (21) -
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities...........c.ccccooii 1,596 0 1,596 0
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Principal payments - bonds......................oo. (30) - (30) -
Principal payments - loans......................cocooe (1,272) - (1,272) -
Purchase of fixed assets...........c.cccccceiinn. (2,179) 17) (2,196) (42)
Interest paid............coeeeveceiiiiiieiieie (1,356) (3) (1,359) -
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities.............ccccceeeviiiiiii (4,837) (20) (4,857) (42)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Decrease in deferred revenue............................ - - - (25)
Proceeds from sale of investments................... 940 11,381 12,321 -
Payments for investments..................c (2,490) (12,782) (15,272) (181)
Interest received............cccoooiiiiiiiiiii - 371 371 58
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities.............ccccoeiiiiii (1,550) (1,030) (2,580) (148)
Net increase (decrease) in cash.......................... 248 184 432 53
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1............... 841 4,325 5,166 8
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31.......... $1,089 $4,509 $5,598 $61
continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-(continued)
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by (Used in) Operating Activities

Discretely
2000 Totals Presented
Internal (Memorandum Component
Enterprise Service Only) Unit
Operating income (l0SS).............c.ccooeveveeeeirn, $1,728 $2,224 $3,952 ($58)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation expense................c..ccooeevervveeeeen.. 3,326 64 3,390 39
Change in provision for worker's
compensation claims...................ccocooevevveeee.. - (361) (361) -
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable.....................ccccocoeenn. (244) 4 (240) 14
Due from other governments........................... 221 - 221 -
Due from otherfunds.....................coceevieii . - (72) (72) -
Inventory: materials and supplies...................... 16 (152) (136) (5)
Prepaid eXpenses...............ccccooeevieeeeeiiece - - - (1)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable......................cccocooeceiienn. (21) (486) (507) 190
Accrued wages and benefits.............................. (13) (6) (19) 64
Due to other governments.................cccococoo... 27 - 27 -
Dueto otherfunds................coocooviviieiice (1) 19 18 -
Total adjustments...................ccocoeveviin 3,311 (990) 2,321 301
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities..................ccooeveev e $5,039 $1,234 $6,273 $243

Noncash capital and related financing activities:

Enterprise funds received approximately $3.5 million of contributed fixed assets, (approximately $2 million
to the Water Supply System, and $1.5 million to the Sewer System.)

Central Supplies fund had a capital lease obligation remaining of $26 thousand.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Toledo
Mud Hens Lott Preferred Comunity
Baseball Industries Properties Living
Club, Inc. Inc. Inc. Options, Inc.
Assets:
Current assets-
Pooled cash and cash equivalents.................. $61 $51 $104 $772
Investments...................ccooovmeneeeeee 1,224 4,814 - 3,149
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables)

ACCOUNES......oooniiiiieeeeeeeee 59 902 450 542
Prepaid expenses...............ccocovveveeeieen . 15 121 90 8
Inventory: materials and supplies.................... 112 216 - -

Total current assets..................c.c.ocococoooo. 1,471 6,104 644 4,471

Property, plant and equipment-
Land.......cooiiieceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee - 188 689 -
Buildings, structures and
IMProvVemMEeNtS............c.oovvvveeeeeeoeeee - 3,946 3,959 -
Furniture, fixtures and equipment.................... 333 3,353 108 59
Construction in progress...........cccccocoeveeenii. - 335 1,372
Less: accumulated depreciation...................... (210) (2,863) (705) (48)
Totalassets............cocovoeeeeeeie, $1,594 $11,063 $6,067 $4,482
Liabilities:
Current liabilities-
Accounts Payable...................ccocooooeoiiei . $332 $320 $361 $595
Accrued wages and benefits........................... 97 172 12 -
Deferred revenue..................cccooveeeveeeee ., 20 - - -
Current portion of long-term debt................... - 145 15 -

Total current liabilities................................ 449 637 388 595
Notes Payable..................coooovvvveeeee - - 30 -
Bonds Payable.................c..coocooiee - 1,090 - -
Other long term obligations............................ - - 3,277 -

Total liabilities...................cocoovevereeeeen. 449 1,727 3,695 595

Equity:
FundBalance..............c.c.oooovoooveeeeee - 9,336 2,372 3,887
Retained earnings - unreserved..................... 1,145 - - -
Total fund equity..............ccococoeveveean.. 1,145 9,336 2,372 3,887
Total liabilities and fund equity................. $1,594 $11,063 $6,067 $4,482

— 36 —



Total

$988
9,187

1,953
234
328

12,690

877

7,905
3,853
1,707

(3,826)
$23,206

$1,608
281

20

160

2,069
30
1,090
3,277
6,466
15,595
1,145

16,740

$23,206
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Lott Preferrd Community
Industries Properties Living
Inc. Inc. Options, Inc. Total
Revenues:

Charges for services.................cc.ccccooo.. 6,080 266 - $6,346

Intergovernmental revenue......................... - 356 3,179 $3,535

Miscellaneous revenue............................... 521 99 908 $1,528
Total revenues.............cccccoveeaeeen... 6,601 721 4,087 11,409

Expenditures

Current:

Health........cooooooiiie 5,494 655 4,243 $10,392
Total expenditures.............cc....ccc.......... 5,494 655 4,243 10,392
Excess revenue over (under)
expenditures..............ccccoceeeeeveneenee... 1,107 66 (156) 1,017

Fund balance at beginning

ofyear........cccooooeiiiiii 8,229 2,306 4,043 $14,578

Fund balance atend of year.................... $9,336 $2,372 $3,887 $15,595
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation

The County: Lucas County is a political subdivision of
the State of Ohio. The County was formed by an act of
the Ohio General Assembly in 1835. The three member
Board of County Commissioners is the legislative and
executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the
chief fiscal officer. In addition, there are seven other
elected administrative officials, each of whom are
independent as set forth by Ohio law. These officials are:
Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecutor,
Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. There are also ten
Common Pleas Court Judges, two Domestic Relations
Court Judges, two Juvenile Court Judges, one Probate
Court Judge and five Court of Appeals Judges elected
on a County-wide basis to oversee the County’s judicial
system.

As defined by generally accepted accounting principles
established by the Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), the financial reporting entity consists of the
primary government, as well as its component units, which
are legally separate organizations which the elected
officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. Financial accountability is defined as
appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s
board, and either (a) the ability to impose will by the
primary government, or (b) the possibility that the
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose
a financial burden on the primary government.

The accompanying financial statements present the
County (Primary Government) and its component units.
The financial data of the component units are included in
the County’s reporting entity because of the significance
of their operational or financial relationships with the
County.

A discretely presented component unit is an entity that
is legally separate from the County but for which the
County is financially accountable, or its relationship with
the County is such that exclusion would cause the
County’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.

The discretely presented component unit column in the
combined financial statements include the County’s
component units. They are reported in a separate column

to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
county. A brief description of each component unit, and
its relationships to the County follows:

Toledo Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. is organized to
own, manage, and operate a professional baseball club.
The board of this component unit is appointed by the
Board of County Commissioners. The County receives
rent from the Mud Hens that is substantially below market
rate, which imposes a financial burden, as defined by
GASB 14 on the County. For report purposes, the Mud
Hens are a proprietary component unit. The Mud Hens are
reported on a fiscal year ending October 31. Complete
financial statements of the component unit can be
obtained from its administrative office at 2901 Key Street,
Maumee, Ohio 43537.

Lott Industries, Inc., is a nonprofit organization affiliated
with the Lucas County Board of Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities (LCBMR/DD), a special
revenue fund of the County. It provides employment for
individuals with mental retardation and developmental
disabilities by obtaining work competitively from the private
and public sectors. A majority of the board of the
component unit is appointed by the LCBMR/DD. The
LCBMR/DD pays the salaries of the administrative staff,
which is a financial obligation of the County, and the
component unit exists solely to provide service to the
LCBMR/DD. For report purposes, Lott Industries, Inc. is
a governmental component unit. Complete financial
statements of the component unit can be obtained from its
administrative office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio
43620.

Preferred Properties, Inc. and Affiliates is a not-for-profit
corporation organized to provide affordable and
accessible housing to persons with disabilities. One third
of the board of the component unit is appointed by the
LCBMR/DD. Funds for the purchase of housing are
received from the LCBMR/DD which come from board
funds and pass through of funds from Community
Assistance Projects administered by the Ohio
Department of Mental Retardation and Develop-
mental Disabilities. This imposes a financial obligation
on the County. For report purposes,



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation-(continued)

Preferred Properties, Inc. is a governmental component
unit. Preferred Properties, Inc. is reported on a fiscal year
ending June 30. Complete financial statements of the
component unit can be obtained from its administrative
office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio 43620.

Community Living Options, Inc. is a non-profit corporation
that provides residential assistance and support services
to individuals with mental retardation and developmental
disabilities. The board of the component unit is appointed
by the LCBMR/DD. The component unit receives the
majority of its funding from the State of Ohio, passed
through the LCBMR/DD. The LCBMR/DD has agreed to
fund any losses of the component unit which imposes a
financial obligation on the County. For report purposes,
Community Living Options, Inc. is a governmental
component unit. Complete financial statement of the
component unit can be obtained from its administrative
office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio 43620.

In determining its reporting entity and component units,
the County considered all potential component units,
including the Lucas County Board of Health, Metropolitan
Park District, Lucas County Soil and Water Conservation
District, Lucas County Port Authority, Lucas County
Improvement Corporation, Toledo Zoological Society,
Toledo Area Sanitary District, Toledo Lucas County Public
Library, Lucas County Board of Education and Toledo-
Lucas County Convention and Visitors Bureau and
concluded that such were neither component units nor
related organizations of the County and that it would not
be misleading to exclude their activities from the County’s
reporting entity.

Basis of Presentation: The accounts of the County are
organized on the basis of funds or account groups, each
of which are considered separate accounting entities. The
accounting of the operations of each fund is maintained by
a set of self-balancing accounts that comprise the assets,
liabilities, fund equity, revenues, expenditures/expenses
and statement of cash flows as appropriate. The various
funds are summarized by type in the general purpose
financial statements.

Total columns on the Combined Statements are
captioned “Memorandum Only” to indicate they are
presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in
these columns do not present financial position, results of
operations or cash flows in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles, nor are such data
comparable to a consolidation.

The County uses the following fund types and account
groups:

Governmental Fund Types

 General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating
revenues and expenditures of the County not recorded
elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use
taxes, property taxes, state and local government fund
receipts, investment earnings and charges for services.

« Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for
specific governmental revenues (other than major capital
projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or
regulatory provisions or administrative action. These funds
include: Public Assistance, the Board of Mental Retardation
and the Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax funds, which are major
funds of the County.

« Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service fund is used to account
for revenues received and used to pay principal and interest
on debt reported in the County’s general long-term obligations
account group.

« Capital Projects Funds: These funds are used to account for
the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues
and financing sources are derived from the issuance of debt
or receipts from the General Fund and Special-Revenue
funds.

Proprietary Fund Types:

 Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for
operations that provide services which are financed primarily
by user charges, or activities where periodic measurement of
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control or other purposes.

« Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for
the goods or services provided by certain County depart-



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation-(continued)

ments to other County funds, departments and other
governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types:

« Trust and Agency Funds: These funds are used to account
for and maintain assets held by the County in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governmental units and other funds. These assets
include: property and other taxes, as well as other inter-
governmental resources which have been collected and
which will be distributed to other taxing districts located in
Lucas County.

Account Groups:

« General Fixed Assets Account Group: This account group is
used to present the general fixed assets of the County utilized
in its general operations, exclusive of those used in
Enterprise and Internal Service funds. General fixed assets
of Lucas County include land, buildings, structures and
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, assets
acquired by capital leases and construction in progress.

« General Long-Term Obligations Account Group: This account
group is used to account for all long-term obligations of the
County.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County
are prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for local government units
as prescribed in statements and interpretations issued by
the GASB and other recognized authoritative sources.
The County has elected not to apply FASB Statements
and interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, to its
proprietary activities.

Measurement Focus: Governmental and Expendable
Trust Funds are accounted for on a spending, or “financial
flow,” measurement focus. Governmental and
Expendable Trust Fund operating statements represent
increases and decreases in net current assets. Their

reported fund balance is considered a measure of
available spendable resources.

Proprietary Fund Types are used to account for the
County’s ongoing organizations and activities which are
similar to the private sector. Proprietary Fund Types are
accounted for on a cost of services, or “capital
maintenance,” measurement focus. Proprietary Fund
Type income statements represent increases and
decreases in net total assets.

Basis of Accounting: All financial transactions for
Governmental and Fiduciary Funds are reported on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this ac-
counting method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available to finance County operations.
Revenues accrued at the end of the year consist of
reimbursements from other governments for grant
expenditures, amounts receivable from charges for
services, licenses and permits, fines, special assessments
and property taxes. Governmental Fund expenditures are
accrued when the related fund liability is incurred, except
interest on long-term debt, which is recorded when due.
Proprietary Fund financial transactions are recorded on
the accrual basis of accounting; revenues are recognized
when earned and measurable; expenses are recognized
as incurred.

Budgetary Accounting and Control: Under Ohio law,
the Board of County Commissioners must adopt an
appropriations budget by January 1st of a given year, or
adopt a temporary appropriation measure with final
passage of a permanent budget by April 1st, for all funds
except Agency Funds. Budgets are legally required for
each organizational unit by object (personal services,
materials and supplies, charges for services, and capital
outlays and equipment).

Each County department prepares a budget which is
approved by the Board of County Commissioners.
Modifications to the original budget within expenditure
objects can be made by the budget manager in the
Auditor’s Office. The County maintains budgetary control
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting
expenditures and encumbrances to exceed appropriations
at the object level (the legal level of control).
Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at
year-end. Encumbered and unpaid appropriations
(reserved for encumbrances) are carried forward to the
next year as authority for expenditures.

The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain
transactions on a basis other than GAAP. The major
difference between the budget basis and the GAAP basis
are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as
opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when encumbered, or paid in
cash (budget), as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

The actual results of operations, compared to the final
appropriation, which include amendments to the original
appropriation, for each fund type by expenditure function
and revenue source are presented in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (non-GAAP Budgetary
Basis)- All Governmental Fund Types. The difference
between the accrual and cash basis statements was not
significant. The reserve for encumbrances is carried
forward as part of the budgetary authority for the next year
and is included in the revised budget amounts shown in
the budget to actual comparisons.

Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the combined
statement of cash flows and for presentation of the
combined balance sheet, investments of the cash
management pool, and investments with original
maturities of three months or less at the time they are
purchased by the County are considered to be cash
equivalents. Investments with an initial maturity of more
than three months are considered to be investments.

Inventory of Materials and Supplies: Inventory is
valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method.
Inventory is recorded as an expenditure/expense when
consumed.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: All fixed assets that
are acquired or constructed for general governmental
purposes are reported as expenditures in the fund that
finances the asset acquisition and are capitalized in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group, if they meet the
County’s capitalization criteria. Real property (except for
infrastructure assets) is recorded at cost or estimated
historical cost based on appraisal. Donated and
contributed fixed assets are recorded at their fair market
value on the date donated to the County. Public domain,
or infrastructure general fixed assets consisting of roads,
bridges, culverts and other ancillary assets are capitalized
in the General Fixed Assets Account group as of
December 31, 2000. The capitalization of these costs is
a change in accounting method more fully described in
Note T. The capitalized cost of the related assets (which
were initially calculated at December 31, 1999) are
detailed in Note E. Water supply and sanitary sewer lines
are capitalized in the Water Supply and Sanitary Sewer
funds, respectively, and are included as part of the
Enterprise funds. These assets are classified as land
improvements when the sanitary engineer has accepted
them.

Depreciation is not provided for the General Fixed
Assets Account Group. Depreciation for the Proprietary
Funds is determined by allocating the cost of fixed assets
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
A full year of depreciation expense is taken in the year of
acquisition, and none in the year of disposal.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

+ Furniture, fixtures and equipment - 5 to 20 years
+ Buildings, structures, improvements - 20 to 40 years
+ Land improvements (water and sewer lines) 40 years

Capitalization of Interest: The County’s policy is to
capitalize interest on debt related to Proprietary fund
construction projects until there has been substantial
completion of the project. The Couity does not capitalize
interest on Governmental fund construction projects.
Capitalized interest on Proprietary fund construction is
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the asset. For 2000, no interest was
capitalized.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Contributed Capital: Contributed capital represents
resources from other governments, special assessments,
developers and grants provided to Proprietary funds, and
are not subject to repayment. These assets are recorded
at cost on the date the asset is purchased. Depre-
ciation on those assets acquired through capital grants
externally restricted for capital acquisitions is expended
and closed to the contributed capital fund equity account.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the general
purpose financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues:
Local Government fund revenues are recorded as
receivables and revenues when measurable and avail-
able. Assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement
are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and
revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal and State
reimbursement type grants for the acquisition or
construction of fixed assets in Proprietary funds are
recorded as receivables and contributed capital when the
related expenses are incurred. All other Federal and
State reimbursement type grants are recorded as
receivables and revenues when the related
expenditures/expenses are incurred.

The County’s Department of Human Services (Welfare)
distributes federal food stamps to entitled recipients within
Lucas County. The receipt and issuance of these stamps
have the characteristics of federal “grants”; however, the
Department of Human Services merely acts in an
intermediary capacity. Therefore, the inventory value of
the stamps is not reflected in the accompanying financial
statements as the only economic interest related to the
stamps rests with the ultimate recipient. The County’s
Department of Human Services had on hand for
distribution approximately $20 thousand of federal food
stamps at December 31, 2000.

Interfund Transactions: During the normal course of
operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds. These transactions include charges for
services provided by an Internal Service fund to other
funds and operating transfers. Operating transfers
represent transfers of resources from a fund receiving
revenue to a fund through which those resources will be
expended and are recorded as other financing sources
(uses) in Governmental Fund Types and as operating
transfers in Proprietary funds.

The Internal Service funds record charges for services
to all County funds, departments and other governmental
units as operating revenue. Both Governmental and
Proprietary funds record these payments to the Internal
Service funds as operating expenditures/expenses.

Compensated Absences: The County records
accumulated unpaid vacation, overtime pay, and vested
sick time benefits as accrued wages and benefits payable
when earned by employees. For Governmental Fund
Types the portion of the liability which is not currently due
and payable is recorded in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group (GLTOAG).

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated
for more than three years. Normally, all vacation time is
to be taken in the year available unless administrative
written approval for carryover is obtained. Unused
vacation is payable upon termination of employment.
Unused sick time may be accumulated until retirement.
Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are
paid one third of accumulated sick time upon retirement
with a maximum of 40 days. In general, employees are
eligible to be paid for unused compensatory time upon
termination of employment. All sick, vacation and
compensatory payments are made at employees’ current
wage rates.

Self-Funded Insurance: The County is self-funded for
dental and health benefits. The dental program is
administered by Stateline TPA, Inc., which provides claims
review and processing services. Each County fund is
charged for its proportionate share of the cost for covered
employees. Payment of these benefits is accounted for in
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Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

an internal service fund. The County records a liability for
incurred but unreported claims at year end based upon an
actuarial estimate provided by Stateline TPA, Inc. The
County also maintains a Self-Funded Workers’
Compensation fund and a Risk Retention fund to manage
liability insurance County-wide. There have been no
significant reductions in coverage from the prior year and
settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in
any of the last three years.

The County’s Self-funded Workers’ Compensation fund
(an internal service fund) accounts for and finances its
uninsured risks of loss for workers’ compensation claims.
Under this program, the Self-funded Workers’
Compensation fund provides coverage for up to a
maximum of $300 thousand for each workers’
compensation claim. The County will pay premiums to the
State of Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation for
claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund. In
addition, the fund will pay assessments to the Bureau of
Workers’ Compensation for administration and payment of
claims.

All funds of the County participate in the program and
make payments to the Self-funded Workers’
Compensation Fund based on their usage of the program
to cover actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay
current-year claims. The claims liability of $6.3 million
reported in the fund at December 31, 2000 is based on
the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standard
Board Statement 10, which requires that a liability for
claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of
the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. This liability includes an amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported. Because actual
claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as
inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards,
the process used in computing claims liability does not
necessarily result in an exact amount. Liabilities for
losses to be settled by fixed or reasonably determine-
able payments over a long period of time are reported at

their present value using an expected future investment
yield assumption of 6.50%.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting is utilized
by County funds in the normal course of operations for
purchase orders and contract related expenditures. An
encumbrance is a reserve on the available spending
authority due to a commitment for a future expenditure
and does not represent a liability. Encumbrances
outstanding at year end appear as a reserve to the fund
balance on a GAAP basis and as the equivalent of
expenditures on a non-GAAP budgetary basis in order to
demonstrate legal compliance. This encumbrance
authority is carried forward to the next fiscal year and is
reported in the “Revised Budget” amount for budgetary
comparisons. If the actual expenditures are less than the
amount encumbered, the excess reserve is closed to the
unreserved fund balance.

Fund Balance Reservations and Designations: The
County reserves portions of fund balances that are legally
segregated for specific future uses or that do not
represent available, spendable resources and, therefore,
are not appropriable for expenditures. Designations of
fund balances are amounts that have been designated by
management for a specific future use, which are not
legally segregated. Undesignated fund balances are not
reserved nor designated and are appropriable in future
periods.

Prepaid Items: Payments made to vendors for services
that benefit future periods are recorded as prepaid items
by using the consumption method. A current asset for the
prepaid amount is recorded at the time of purchase, and
the expenditure is reported in the vyear in
whichservicesareconsumed.

Note C - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents, Segregated
Cash, Investments and Deposits

To improve cash management, cash received by the
County is pooled in a central bank account which is
managed by the County Treasurer. Amounts for all funds
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Note C - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits
(continued)

including proprietary funds, are maintained in this account
or are temporarily used to purchase short term
investments. Individual fund integrity is maintained
through the County’s records. Each fund’s interest in the
pooled bank accounts is presented as cash and cash
equivalents, and investments on the balance sheet.
During 2000, investments were limited to STAR Ohio,
certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury Obligations and
Mortgage-backed Securities, Commercial paper and
Bankers acceptances. These investments are stated at
fair value. Money market investments that mature within
one year of acquisition and participating interest-earning
investment contracts that mature within one year of
acquisition are reported at amortized cost. The County’s
investments are covered by Custodian Safekeeping
Agreements with all securities dealers of County owned
purchased securities, whereby such securities are held for
the County by a third party custodian.

Investment income is recorded in the General and Self-
funded Health funds. Investment income in the General
fund includes earnings on all pooled investments.
Investment income earned during 2000 totaled approxi-
mately $13.6 million.

The County uses separate bank accounts for resources
not deposited with the County Treasurer. These interest
bearing depository accounts are presented in the
Combined Balance Sheet as “Segregated Cash
Accounts.”

Legal Provisions: The County Treasurer is permitted
by Ohio law to deposit or invest County funds provided
that they mature or are redeemable within two years from
date of purchase. The Treasurer is permitted to invest or
deposit in the following classification of obligations:

1) Obligations of, or backed by the faith of, the United States
Government.

2) Obligations issued by any Federal agency.

3) Deposits in institutions eligible under Ohio law. All
deposits are collateralized with eligible securities, as described
by state statutes, which are pledged to a collateral pool for each
individual financial institution, in amounts equal to at least 110%
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of the carrying value of all public deposits held by each
institution.

4) Obligations of the State.

5) Repurchase agreements with institutions eligible under
Ohio law not to exceed 30 days, where the institution agrees
unconditionally to repurchase any of the securities listed in (1)
or (2).

6) Commercial paper issued by any corporation incorporated
under the laws of the United States or a state if both of the
following conditions apply. Two nationally recognized rating
agencies rank the commercial paper in either of their two
highest categories; the total amount invested in commercial
paper at any time does not exceed five per cent of the county’s
total average portfolio, as determined and calculated by the
investing authority.

7) Bankers acceptances, if the following conditions are met:
The acceptances mature in two hundred seventy days or fewer
from the date of settlement; the acceptances are eligible for
purchase by the federal reserve system; the total amount
invested in bankers acceptances at any time does not exceed
ten per cent of the county’s total average portfolio, as
determined and calculated by the investing authority.

8) The State Treasurer's Investment pool (STAROhio).
Investment authority for the State Treasurer’s Investment pool
is established by the State Legislature and reflected in the Ohio
Revised Code.

9) No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively
of obligations described in division (1) or (2) of this section and
repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided
that investments in securities described in this division are
made only through eligible institutions.

The Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB
Statement 3) has established credit risk categories for
deposits and investments.

o Category 1 - Investments that are insured or registered, or
securities held by the County or its agent in the County’s name.

Deposits that are insured or collateralized with securities held by
the County or its agent in the County’s name.

» Category 2 - Investments that are uninsured and unregistered,
with securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or
agent in the County’s name.
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Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits
(continued)

» Deposits that are collateralized with securities held by the Deposits that are uncollateralized or collateralized with securities
pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust department
not in the County’s name. or agent but not in the County’s name.

« Category 3 - Investments that are uninsured or unregistered,
with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust
department or agent but not in the County’s name.

Based on the above criteria, the County’s deposits and
investments at December 31, 2000 are classified as follows:

Amount Available for
Deposit or Investment (Amounts in 000's)

Carrying amounts per
combined balance sheet:

Pooled..................... $ 222,178
Segregated ................. 7,260
Outstanding Checks .......... 13,807
Other reconciling items (net) . . . . (88)

Amount available for deposit
and investment (Bank balances
of deposits/fair value

ofinvestments) ............. $ 243,157
Deposits: At year-end the County Risk Category Bank Fair
had the following deposits 1 2 3 Balance Value

eligible under Ohio law:

(Amounts in 000's)

FDIC insured deposits . . ....... $ 1,528 $ - $ - $1,528
Insured by the financial
institutions collateral pool . . . .. - - 6,072 6,072
Money Market Account ........ - - 10,301 10,301
Certificates of deposit ......... - 40,07 - 40,072
Total deposits . ............. $ 1,528 $40,072  $16,373 $ 57,973

Investments: At year-end
the County had the following

investments:
U.S. Treasury Notes .......... $25,678 $ - $ - $25,678
U.S. TreasuryBills ........... 895 - - 895
United States Agency Securities . 132,089 - - 132,089
Commercial Paper ........... 11,868 - - 11,868
Investment in the state treasurer's
Investment pool (1) .......... - - - 14,654
Total investments ........... $170,530 $ - $ - $185,184

™ The County’s investment in the state treasurer’s investment program is not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form. The fair value of the position in the investment pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.
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Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits
(continued)

Based on the above criteria, the Discretely Presented
Component Units of the County have deposits and
investments classified as follows:

Amount Available for
Deposit or Investment (Amounts in 000's)

Carrying amounts per
combined balance sheet:

Pooled..................... $10,175

Amount available for deposit
and investment (Bank balances
of deposits/fair value

ofinvestments)............. $10.175
Deposits and investments: At year- Risk Category Bank Fair
end the discretely presented 1 2 3 Balance Value

component units had the following
deposits eligible under Ohio law:

(Amounts in 000's)

FDIC insured deposits . .. ........ $312 $ - $ - $ 312
Insured by the financial

Institutions collateral pool . . . .. .. - - 179 179
Certificates of deposit ........... - 5,389 - 5,389
Total deposits . . .............. 312 5,389 179 $5.880
Investments: at year-end the
discretely presented component
units had the following
investments:
US Treasury Notes ............. $ 790 $ - $ - $ 790
United States Agency Securities . . . 1,032 - - 1,032
Money Market ................. 1,707 - - 1,707
CorporateBonds ............... 588 - - 588
Mortgage Backed Securities . .. ... 178 - - 178
Total investments . ............ $4.295 $ - $ - 4,29
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Note D - Interfund Receivables and Payables

Due to / Due from other funds balances as of Decem-
ber 31, 2000 follow:

Due From / Due To
(Amounts in 000's)

GeneralFund ................... $- $103
Special Revenue funds:
Emergency medical ............ - 8
Child support enforcement agency . - 12
Real estate assessment ......... - 3
Public assistance .............. - 27
Children servicesboard ......... - 15
Community Mental Health . ... .... 1
Other ............ ... ... - 17
Enterprise funds:
Sanitary Engineer .............. - 1
Solidwaste ................... - 1
Internal Service funds:
Central supplies ............... 15 -
Vehicle maintenance ............ 153 -
Self-funded health insurance ..... - 350
Self-funded dental insurance .. ... 350 -
Centralized drug testing ......... _20 -
Tofals ....................... $538 538

Note E - General Fixed Assets, Propritary Fund and
Discretely Presented Component Units Fixed Assets.

The schedule of changes in general fixed assets by asset

type is presented below. The schedule of changes in
infrastructure fixed assets by category and the schedule
of proprietary and discretely presented component units
fixed assets by asset type are presented on the following
page. See Note T for change in method of accounting for
infrastucture cost.

Capital Leases: General fixed assets recorded under
capital leases accounted for $344 thousand in land, $16.6
million in buildings and $1.5 million in equipment at
December 31, 2000.

Construction-in-progress: The $36,053 thousand
balance in construction-in-progress for the General Fixed
Assets reflects $21,374 thousand in alterations to the
Juvenile Court Detention Facility, $7,073 thousand for the
new baseball stadium, $5,425 thousand for the 911
Communications Center, and $2,181 thousand in other
miscellaneous projects. The estimated cost to complete
these projects is $48.2 million. The $2,265 thousand in
the enterprise construction-in-progress is for an elevated
water tank. The estimated cost to complete this project is
$500 thousand.

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Asset Type

General Balance
Fixed Asset January 1,
Type 2000
Land.................. $14,940
Buildings, structures

and improvements. . . . . 124,197
Infrastructure. .. ......... 266,370
Furniture, fixtures

and equipment. . ...... 24,970
Construction-in-progress. . . 3.874
Total general

fixed assets. . ......... $434,351

Balance
Current Year December 31,
Additions Deletions 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

$ - $ - $14,940

849 - 125,046

13,266 5,873 273,763

2,605 1,764 25,811

33.028 _849 36.053
$49.748 $8.486 475.61
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Note E - General Fixed Assets, Proprietary Fund and Discretely
Presented Component Units Fixed Assets-(continued)

A Schedule of Changes in infrastructure Fixed Assets by Categories

Balance Balance
January 1, Additions Reductions December 31
2000 (Amounts in 000's) 2000
Roads......... $253,663 $5,729 $ - $259,392
Bridges . ....... 6,710 108 - 6,818
Culverts. . ...... 1,630 36 - 1,666
Constr. InProg . . 4,367 7.393 5873 5,887
Total .......... $266,370 $13.266 5,873 $273,763
Schedule of Proprietary and Discretely Presented Component Units Fixed Assets by Asset Type
Discretely
Internal Presented
Fixed Asset Enterprise Service Component
Type Funds Funds Units
(Amounts in 000's)
Land . ..o $402 $83 $ 877
Buildings, structures,
and improvements . .................. 23,287 30 7,905
Land improvements .................. 102,191 - -
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment ......... ... il 12,963 1,191 3,853
Construction-in-progress . ............. 2,265 - 1,707
Total fixedassets ................... 141,108 1,304 14,342
Less: accumulated
depreciation:
Contributedassets .................. (12,213) - -
Purchasedassets .................. (41,237) (1.080) (3.826)
Total accumulated
depreciation . ...................... (53,450) 1,080 (3.826)
Total net fixed assets . ................ $87.658 $224 10,51
Note F - Notes Payable
All notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the and the County intends to refinance the notes until such
County and mature within one year. The notes are bonds are issued. All notes were in the capital projects
issued anticipation of long-term bonded financing, fund. Notes outstanding at December 31, 2000 follows:
Note Issue Rate
(Amounts in 000's)
Capital Projects
Sewer and Waterlines. .. ............... 4.50% $4,600
Juvenile Facility. . . .................... 4.56% 14,860
Total capital projectsnotes. . ............ $19.460
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Note F - Notes Payable (continued)

Lucas County Recreation, Inc. and Toledo Mud Hens
Baseball Club Inc. have available a $500,000 line of credit
with an interest rate at 2% above the rate paid on
certificates of deposit (8,63% at October 31, 2000). There
were no outstanding borrowings at October 31, 2000.
Preferred Properties Inc. and affiliates has a note payable
of $11 thousand with an interest rate of 9.7% due in July
of 2002, and a note payable of $19 thousand with an
interest rate of 8.58% due in July 2005. They also have
various mortgages payable totaling $3,277 thousand
secured by real estate with interest rates varying from 0%
to 9.00%. Preferred Properties, Inc. has available a
$150,000 line of credit with an interest rate at 1.5% over
prime (10.5% at June 30, 2000). There were no
outstanding borrowings at June 30.

Note G - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations

Long-term Bonds: All long-term debt issued for
governmental purposes of the County and special
assessment bonds are retired from the Debt Service
Fund. General Obligation proprietary bonds are retired
from the related Enterprise funds. General Obligation
bonds are secured by the County’s ability to levy a voted
or unvoted property tax within limitations of Ohio Law.
Self-supporting bonds are secured by an unvoted property
tax levy (special assessments), however, each
appropriate bond indenture provides for principal and
interest to be paid from user charges. In the event
property owners default on their special assessment
obligations, the County is obligated to meet the debt
service requirements from County funds. At December
31, 2000, the County had $384 thousand set aside for the
retirement of this debt. These funds are included in
pooled cash and investments.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code,
the County has the capacity to issue approximately $27.6
million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Lott Industries, Inc., a discretely presented Component
unit of the County has bonds payable of $1,090 thousand
that mature on August 1, 2008, with a variable interest rate
that was 5.0% at December 31, 2000.

The County issued $20 million in economic development
bonds and $6 million in economic development revenue
bond anticipation notes in March 2001, to finance the
construction of the new baseball stadium.

Library Improvement Bonds: Lucas County serves
in a ministerial capacity as the taxing authority for the
Toledo-Lucas County Public Library. Ohio Revised Code
prohibits Libraries from holding bonded debt and requires
the debt to be held in the name of the subdivision to which
the Libraries board’s jurisdiction is subject. As such, the
library requested that Lucas County put a levy on the
ballot for $38.6 million in improvements to the Toledo-
Lucas County Public Library. In November 1995, the
electorate of Lucas County approved an increase in
property taxes to pay for the issuance of $25.0 million
General Obligation Bonds for improvements to the Toledo-
Lucas County Public Library. On December 11, 1997 the
County issued the remaining $13.6 million of General
Obligation Bonds.

Prior-year defeasance of debt: In prior years, the
County defeased certain general obligation bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the
liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
financial statements. During 2000, $8.2 million of defeased
bonds were retired, leaving no outstanding defeased
bonds.
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Note G - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

Long-term debt and other ob-
ligations of the County were as follows:

Maturity Balance Balance
Years Interest Date January 1, December 31,
Issued Rate through 2000 Additions Deductions 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Bonds
General Obligation Bonds-

Unvoted

1986 County public

assistance building............... 8.000% 12/01/11 $2,640 - $220 $2,420

1986 Convention center

1aNd.....coieeeeeee 6.500% 12/01/12 4,380 - 335 4,045

1988 Family Court Center
construction & Courthouse

renovation..........cccceeereeennnnne 7.375% 08/01/07 7,000 - 875 6,125
1990 Courthouse renovation :
& work release/pretrial 5.550%
facility.......ccoeevevverencnceienne 6.950% 12/01/00 475 - 475 0
1992 Regional jail.................. 3.400%
6.650% 12/01/07 2,550 - 260 2,290
1994 County building............. 4.000%
5.700% 12/01/04 6,810 - 1,220 5,590
1995 Correctional facilities.... 4.300%
6.800% 12/01/15 2,130 - 90 2,040
1995 Court services building. 4.300%
6.800% 12/01/15 1,920 - 80 1,840
1996 Refunding.........ccccenneee 4.250%
5.375% 12/01/11 8,720 - 85 8,635
General Obligations Bonds-
voted
1996 Library improvement..... 4.300%
6.000% 12/01/05 12,835 - 2,430 10,405
1997 Library improvement..... 3.800%
5.300% 12/01/05 10,600 - 1,400 9,200
Total general obligation
bonds voted and unvoted 60,060 0 7,470 52,590
Special Assessment-
Governmental Commitment
(Self-Supporting)
1964 Sanitary sewer.............. 3.500% 12/01/04 5 - 1 4
1974- 5.125%
1977 Sanitary sewer............ 7.625% 11/01/14 211 - 13 198
1981- 9.625%
1984 Sanitary sewer.......... 12.000% 12/01/04 209 - 48 161
1987 Sanitary sewer.............. 7.500% 12/01/07 120 - 156 105

1988 Sanitary sewer.............. 7.500% 12/01/08 270 - 30 240
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(continued)

Years
Issued

Bonds

Special Assessment-
Governmental Commitment
(Self-Supporting) (continued)

1989 Sanitary sewer..............

1980-

1985 Waterline.....................
1990 Waterline.......................

1992 Briarfield Parkway.........
1992 Sewers & waterlines.....

1992 Sewers & waterlines.....

1994 McCord

Road improvements............
1994 Sewer & waterlines.......
1995 Sewers & waterlines.....
1996 Sewers & waterlines.....
1997 Sewers & waterlines.....
1998 Sewers & waterlines.....
1999 Sewers & waterlines......

2000 Sewers & waterlines.....

Total special assessment
bonds- governmental com-

mitment-(self-supporting).......

Total bonds............ccceruueen.

Ohio Water Development

Authority (OWDA) Loans

Special Assessment-

Governmental Commitment
1983-

1984 Sewers........................
1991 Sewers............ccuueu.......

1994 water...............ccuu.........

Enterprise Funds

1984 Sewer system...............

DECEMBER 31, 2000
Maturity Balance Balance
Interest Date January 1, December 31,
Rate through 2000 Additions Deductions 2000
(Amounts in 000's)
6.750%
7.000% 12/01/09 795 - 60 735
8.125%
8.500% 12/01/04 12 - 12 0
6.800%
6.850% 12/01/10 285 - 20 265
3.400%
6.200% 12/01/02 695 - 220 475
3.400%
6.650% 12/01/11 365 - 20 345
3.400%
6.650% 12/01/12 745 - 40 705
4.000%
5.700% 12/01/03 55 - 10 45
4.000%
6.050% 12/01/13 755 - 35 720
4.300%
6.800% 12/01/14 580 - 25 555
4.250%
6.500% 12/01/16 2,270 - 70 2,200
4.900%
5.450% 12/01/17 1,155 - 40 1,115
4.250%
5.000% 12/01/18 2,395 - 85 2,310
4.000%
6.000% 12/01/19 535 - 10 525
5.200%
5.600% 12/01/20 - 1,560 - 1,560
11,457 1,560 754 12,263
$71,517 $1,560 $8,224 $64,853
7.380%
7.670% 01/01/07 $1,609 - $183 $1,426
6.160%
7.450% 07/01/11 1,290 - 74 1,216
6.720% 07/01/19 363 - 10 353
6.240% 01/01/07 3,002 - 307 2,695
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(continued)

Years
Issued

Enterprise Funds (continued)
1980-
1984 Wastewater treatment...
1990 Water supply system.....
1991 Water supply system.....

1993 Water supply system.....
1994 Sewer system
1994 Wastewater......... .
1995 Water supply system.....
1997 Water supply system.....
1997 Sanitary Engineer..........

Total OWDA loans..............

Ohio Public Works
Commission Loans
Govemmental Commitment
1993 Road improvements......
1994 Road improvements......
1995 Road improvements......
1997 Road improvements......
1999 Road improvements......
2000 Road improvements......
Enterprise Funds......................
1994 Wastewater.........
1994 Sewer system.....
Total OPWC loans....

Other Obligations
Capital lease Obligations
Governmental.........c.ccceeeenn.
Internal Service....................

Accrued wages and benefits-
governmental............ccoceene

Landfill obligation...................

- LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)

A summary of the County's future long-term
debt funding requirements as of December
31, 2000 follows (Amounts in 000's):

Year of

Funding

DECEMBER 31, 2000
Maturity Balance Balance

Interest Date January 1, December 31,

Rate through 2000 Additions Deductions 2000
(Amounts in 000's)
6.250%

11.190% 07/01/13 2,585 - 237 2,348
7.760% 01/01/10 404 - 29 375
7.450%

7.500% 07/01/11 691 - 42 649
6.160% 07/01/18 973 - 30 943
6.720% 07/01/14 799 - 34 765
5.770% 07/01/15 9,934 - 413 9,521
6.350% 01/01/21 464 - 12 452
5.860% 07/01/17 1,762 - 60 1,702
5.860% 07/01/17 1,531 - 53 1,478
$25,407 $0 $1,484 $23,923
0.000% 07/01/04 $122 - $27 $95
0.000% 07/01/05 439 - 69 370
0.000% 07/01/06 247 - 38 209
0.000% 07/01/07 164 - 22 142
0.000% 07/01/10 285 154 35 404
0.000% 07/01/11 - 598 11 587
0.000% 01/01/16 240 - 14 226
0.000% 07/01/04 141 - 31 110
$1,638 $752 $247 $2,143
$12,348 - $1,541 $10,807
31 - 5 26
$12,379 $0 $1,546 $10,833
$15,332 $3,709 $1,811 $17,230
$12,254 $1 - $12,255
Bonds OWDA OPWC
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$8,652 $3,720 $778 $765 $172 $-
8,932 3,231 1,633 1,450 305 -
8,959 2,744 1,625 1,343 305 -
8,259 2,242 1,618 1,235 305 -
6,938 1,785 1,619 1,129 247
14,568 4,873 7,944 4,114 713 -
6,895 1,429 7,607 1,618 69 -
1,650 204 1,080 138 27 -
- - 19 1 - -
$64,853 $20,228 $23,923 $11,793 $2,143 $0
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Note G- Long-term Debt and Other Obligations
(continued)

Capital Lease Obligations: The County entered into a
lease agreement for a portion of the Government Center.
The lease is classified as a capital lease, and the net
present value of the future minimum lease payments is
recorded as a general long-term obligation. The portion of
the Government Center leased by the County has been
recorded as land and building in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group.

The County has entered into certain other agreements
to lease equipment and other assets. Such agreements
are, in substance, lease purchases (capital leases) and
are classified as capital lease obligations in the financial
statements.

Operating Leases: At December 31, 2000, the County
had 13 operating leases for office space and equipment.
Operating lease payments are recorded as expen-
ditures/expenses for the current period.

The County’s future minimum lease payments under
lease obligations which have been capitalized and
operating leases as of December 31, 2000 are as follows
(Amounts in 000's):

Year Capital  Operating
Leases Leases

2001 ............... $ 2,298 $ 43
2002 ..., 2,188 29
2003 ............... 1,918 4
2004 ............... 1,916 -
2005 ............. .. 1,910 -
2006 and thereafter . .. 4,847 -
Total minimum

lease payments .. ... 15,077 $ 76
Less: amount repre-

senting interest ...... 4,244

Present value of future
minimum lease
payments ...........

Accrued Wages and Benefits: Unpaid vested hours at
December 31, 2000 representing this liability for all

governmental funds are as follows (Amounts in 000's):

Hours
Vacation ............ 501
Sick................ 349
Compensation ....... 37

Deferred Compensation: County employees have the
option of participating in three state-wide deferred
compensation plans, created in accordance with the
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under these plans,
employees elect to have a portion of their pay deferred
until a future time. According to these plans, the deferred
compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency. The deferred pay and any income earned
thereon is not subject to income tax until actually received
by the employee.

All amounts of compensation deferred under these
plans, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts,
property, or rights are to be held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries.

Conduit Debt Obligations: From time to time, the
County has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds, Hospital
Facilities Bonds and Commercial Housing Revenue Bonds
to provide financial assistance to private, profit and non-
profit sector entities for the acquisition and construction of
industrial, hospital and commercial facilities deemed to be
in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from payments
received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon
repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the
bond issuance. Neither the County, the State nor any
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.

As of December 31, 2000 there were 176 series of
Industrial, Hospital and Commercial Housing Revenue



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Note G - Long - Term Debt and Other Obligations
(continued)

Bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the 35 series issued after January 1, 1995
was $564,257,000. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the 141 series issued and with bonds
outstanding issued prior to January 1, 1995, could not be
determined; however, their original issue amounts total
$759,775,000.

Note H - Pension and Other Post-Retirement Obligations

All eligible employees of the County, other than the
teachers for the Board of Mental Retardation, participate
in the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio
(PERS), a statewide cost-sharing mulitiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan. Teachers for the Board of
Mental Retardation participate in the State Teachers
Retirement System of Ohio (STRS). STRS is also a
statewide cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee
retirement system administered and controlled by the
State. County employees are not currently covered under
the Federal Social Security Act. The plan provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits
is provided by State statute under Chapter 145 of the Ohio
Revised Code.

The PER’S Board instituted a temporary employer
contribution rate rollback for calendar year 2000. The rate
rollback was 20% for local government divisions and 6%
for law enforcement divisions. Law enforcement officers
in the County Sheriff's department contribute 9% of their
annual compensation and the County contributes 15.7%
of the same base. The County is required to contribute
22.05% of annual compensation for employees of the
County engineer based upon a contract with their
respective union. All other eligible County employees
contribute 8.5% of their annual compensation with the
County contributing 10.84% of the same amount. The
County’s contribution to PERS for the years ending
December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998, were $14.9 million,
$17.2 million, and $16.3 million respectively, equal to the
requested contribution for each year. All contributions to
PERS were made within the required due dates. The Ohio
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Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee
and employer contributions.

STRS contribution rates are established by the State
Teachers Retirement Board, upon recommendations of
its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum
rates of 10% for members and 14% for employers. State
statute provides authority for employee and employer
contributions. Contribution requirements for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2000, 1999 and 1998 were 9.30%
of covered payroll for employees and 14% for employers.
The County’s contribution requirement to STRS for the
years ending December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998, were
$70 thousand, $148 thousand, and $169 thousand
respectively, equal to the required contribution for each
year. All contributions to STRS were made within the
required due dates.

In addition to pension benefits, the County provides
post-retirement health care benefits to employees who
retire from the County under the PERS and STRS plan
discussed above.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority
requiring public employees to fund post-retirement health
care through their contributions to PERS. PERS provides
post-retirement health coverage to age and service
retirants with ten (10) or more years qualifying Ohio
service credit. Health care coverage for disability
recipients and to primary survivor recipients of such
retirants is available. The health care coverage
provided by the retirement system is considered an
Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in
GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer’s
contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of post
retirement health care. The Ohio Revised Code provides
statutory authority for employer contributions. The
employer contribution rate was rolled back for the year
2000. For local government employers, the rate was
10.84% of covered payroll and 15.70% for law
enforcement employers, with 4.3% used to fund health
care for regular employees and law enforcement
employees.



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Note H- Pension and Other Post-Retirement Obligation
(Continued)

The following assumptions and calculations were based
on PER'S latest actuarial review performed as of
December 31, 1999.

An entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation
is used in determining the present value of OPEB. The
differences between assumed and actual experience
(actuarial gains and losses) becomes part of unfunded
actuarial accrued liability.

All investments are carried at market value. For
actuarial valuation purposes, a smoothed market
approach is used. Under this approach assets are
adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unrealized market
appreciation or depreciation on investment assets. The
investment assumption rate for 1999 was 7.75%.

An annual increase of 4.75% annually, is the base
portion of the individual pay increase assumption. This
assumes no change in the number of active employees.
Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above the
4.75% base increase, were assumed to range from .54%
to 5.1%. Health care costs were assumed to increase
4.75% annually.

OPEBs are advance-funded on an actuarially
determined basis. The number of active contributing
participants was 401,339. The rates stated above are the
actuarially determined contribution requirements for
PERS. The employer contributions to fund post-
employment benefits in 2000 was $5.6 million. The
portion of employer contributions used to fund post-
employments benefits can be determined by multiplying
actual employer contributions times .3967 for local
government employers and .2739 for law enforcement
employers.

The actuarial value of the Retirement System’s net
assets available for OPEB was $10,805.5 million at
December 31, 1999 (the latest information available). The
actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability were $12,474 million and $1,688 million,
respectively,

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for
employer contribution. The Retirement Board enacted a
temporary employer contribution rate rollback for calendar
year 2000. The decision to rollback rates was based on
the December 31, 1998 actuarial study, which indicated
that actuarial assets exceeded actuarial liabilities. The
temporary rate rollback was 20% for both the state and
local government divisions and 6% for law enforcement
divisions. The Board reallocated employer contributions
from 4.20% to 4.30% at the beginning of the year to
improve health care financing. The proportion of
contributions dedicated to funding OPEB increased during
the year for those reasons.

STRS provides comprehensive health care benefits to
retirees and their dependents. Coverage includes
hospitalization, physician fees, prescription drugs and
reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. All benefit
recipients and sponsored dependents are eligible for
health care coverage. The Ohio Revised Code provides
statutory authority allowing the STRS Board of Trustees to
provide health care coverage to all eligible employees.
The Board has the discretionary authority over how much,
if any, of the associated health care costs will be absorbed
by the plan. All benefit recipients are required to pay a
portion of the health care cost in the form of a monthly
premium. By Ohio law the cost of the coverage paid from
STRS funds shall be included in the employer contribution
rate, currently 14% of covered payroll. The Board
allocates employer contributions equal to 8% of covered
payroll to the health care reserve fund within the em-
ployer’s trust fund from which payments for health care
benefits are paid. The balance in the health care
reserve fund was $3,419 million at June 30, 2000 (the
latest information available). The 8% contribution for
Lucas County amounted to $40 thousand. The number of
participants eligible to receive health care benefits as of
July 1, 2000 was 99,011. The STRS plan’s net health
care expenses for the year ended June 30, 2000 as a
whole was $283 million. The health care reserve fund
allocation for the year ended June 30, 2001, will be 4.5%
of covered payroll.
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Note H- Pension and Other Post-Retirement Obligations
(continued)

The PERS issues a stand-alone financial report.
Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to:

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
277 EAST TOWN STREET

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215-4642

PHONE: (614) 466-2085

The STRS issues a stand-alone financial report.
Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to:

STATE TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
275 EAST BROAD STREET

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215-3771

PHONE: (614) 227-4090

Note | - Fund Balance and Retained Earnings Deficits

At December 31, 2000, the following funds had deficits:

Deficit
Fund (Amounts in 000's)
Enterprise:
Sewer System . ..... ...... $5,658

The $5.6 million deficit in the Sewer System Fund will be
eliminated by future user charges and subsidies from the
General Fund.

Note J - Property Taxes, Sales Taxes, and Deferred
Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real,
public utility and tangible personal (business) property.

The assessed value by property classification, upon which
taxes collected in 2000 were based is as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Real property. . . ... $ 5,198,999
Public utility and
tangible personal
property .......... 1,387,903
Total assessed
property value . . .. .. 6.5 2

In 2000, real property taxes were levied on December
29, 1999 , on the assessed values as of January 1, 1999,
the lien date. Assessed values are established by the
County Auditor at 35% of appraised market value. A
revaluation of real property is required to be completed no
less than every six years, with a statistical update every
third year. The most recent revaluation was completed in
2000.

Tangible personal property tax is assessed on
equipment and inventory held by businesses. Tangible
property is assessed at 25% of true value (as defined). In
2000, each business was eligible to receive a $10
thousand exemption in assessed value which was
reimbursed by the State.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-
annually. In 2000, if paid annually, payment was due by
February 4th. If paid semi-annually, the first payment (at
least ¥z of amount billed) was due February 4th, with the
remainder due July 28th.

By July, 2000, the final collection date, 98.5% of the total
current and delinquent property taxes billed in 2000 were
collected.

The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes
collected to all taxing districts when completing periodic
settlements of Real and Public Utility property taxes in
February and August and Tangible Personal Property
taxes in June and October for the first and second halves
of the year, respectively. The County accrues billed but
uncollected property taxes as receivables at their
estimated net realizable value.
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Note J - Property Taxes, Sales Taxes, and Deferred
Revenues (continued)

The delinquent real property taxes outstanding and
available to the County within the first 60 days of 2001
were recorded as 2000 revenue, the remaining taxes
receivable are offset by a credit to deferred revenue.
Although total property taxes levied for the next fiscal year
are measurable, amounts to be received during the
available period are not subject to reasonable estimation
at December 31, 2000, and are not available for
appropriation and use until 2001. The deferred revenues
are offset by these property tax receivables and special
assessment receivables related to future capital service
projects.

In 1970, the County Commissioners, by resolution,
imposed a .5% tax on all retail sales, including motor
vehicles, made in the County. In 1982, the County
commissioners increased the sales tax by .5% to 1%. In

November, 1993, Lucas County voters approved a
permanent increase of .25% to 1.25% in the sales tax.
Vendor collections of the tax are paid to the State
Treasurer by the twenty-third day of the month following
collection. The State Tax Commissioner certifies to the
State Auditor the amount of the tax to be returned to the
County. The Tax Commissioner’s certification must be
made within forty-five (45) days after the end of each
month. The State Auditor then has five (5) days in which
to draw the warrant payable to the County.

Proceeds of the tax are credited entirely to the General
Fund. Amounts that have been collected by the State and
are to be received within 60 days of year end are accrued
as revenue, as measurable and available. Sales tax
revenue for 2000 amounted to $67.9 million.

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all
taxing authorities in excess of 10.00 mills of
assessed value without a vote of the people.
Presently, the County levies 2.00 mills of the 10.00

mill limit for the General Fund. An additional 15.95
mills have been levied for voted millage. A
summary of voted millage follows:

Rate
Levied for
Voter cug:":; ;ie:': Final
Authorized Agricultural/ Commercial/ Collection
LPurpose Rate(a) Rgggigengigll(b) Industrial Year
Senior services . ........ 45 448925 450000 2004
Metroparks ............ 1.40 1.393931 1.400000 2008
Community mental health . 1.50 1.338247 1.395167 2005/2009
Board of mental
retardation ............ 4.50 2.697713 3.516967 continuous
Children services ....... 3.50 2.993214 3.420278 2001/2003
Port authority .......... 40 .339003 .393333 2004
Library ................ 1.85 1.741717 1.850000 2005/2007
Zoo improvements ...... .95 .846635 .950000 2005
Zoo operating .......... .70 624202 .700000 2002
911 Telephone system . . .70 623837 700000 2001
Total ................. 15.95 13.047424 14.775745

(a) Dollars per $1,000 of assessed valuation.

(b) Ohio law provides for a reduction of certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property. The voted levies

are subject to change.
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Note K - Intergovernmental Revenue

A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental
revenue follows:

Intergovernmental
Revenue
(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Local gOVErNMENt taXES . . . ... vvvrrreeeeeee i $9,071
Defenseof indigents .. .........co i 1,948
Sheriff SECUrIty ... ... ..ot 1,310
INdIreCt COStFECOVETY . . . o v ot i i 1,253
Child support enforcement incentives ............ ... ... ... .. 893
WWOTK TEIEASE . . o e et e ettt e e et e e 1,018
Municipal/Pretrial jail space reimbursement . .......................... 1,668
(011 7= P 891
Totalgeneral fund . . ... ...... ... .. i $ 18.052
Special Revenue Funds
Federal and state health and human services grants and reimbursements .. $ 89,447
Motor vehicle and gastax ............... it 14,200
Child support enforcement incentives . ............... ... ..ol 10,657
Children services board state grants and reimbursements ............... 14,224
Drug and alcohol addiction servicesgrant ............ ... ... . 9,719
Youth services, treatment delinquent care subsidy stategrants ........... 4,223
Community developmentgrants .............. ... it 4,237
Correctional Treatment Facility ............. .. .. i, 3,308
(012 7= (P P 1,307
Total special revenue funds . .............. . ...l $151.322
Capital Projects
Construction Grant for Juvenile Treatment Facility .................... $3.291
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Note L - Segment Information for Enterprise Funds

The County maintains six Enterprise funds which
provide sanitary sewer, water distribution, wastewater

Operating revenues...........................
Depreciation.............cccoocvvevvereereenennn.
Operating income (loss).....................
Net income (I0SS).......ccovvveereerenneee.
Current capital-

contributions............ccccevvrvririnennenn.
Property, plant and

equipment-

additions.........c.eoeeeeevieiecirieiene

deletions..........cceeeeeeivieneieeereeenes
Net working capital...............c...........
Total assets.......ccccccveeevrereerereennnne.
Bonds and other long-

term liabilities............ccceevcevererenennnes

Note M - Contributed Capital

During 2000, contributed capital in Enterprise funds
changed by the following amounts (Amounts in 000's):

Contributed capital,
January 1.
Contributions from
developers - fixed assets.................
Contributions from special
assessments - fixed assets.............
Depreciation on fixed assets
acquired by federal capital grants....
Contributed capital, December 31.....

treatment, recycling, and parking services. Segment
information for the year ended December 31, 2000
follows (Amounts in 000's):

Water Waste-

Sanitary Supply Water Sewer
Engineer System Treatment System
$3,757 $1,920 $3,908 $1,712
179 1,251 451 1,349
483 (808) 1,323 12
373 534 584 (241)

- 2,000 - 1,478

134 2,002 - 1,478

23 - - -
2,129 788 3,540 2,665
5,359 35,900 18,779 37,684
1,451 4,030 11,753 3,373
3,460 31,712 6,457 34,105

Water Waste-
Supply Water Sewer

System Treatment System Total
$26,228 $4,055 $38,510 $68,793
1,012 - 1,478 2,490
988 - - 988
(8) (43) (225) (276)
$28,220 $4,012 $39,763 $71,995




Discretely

Total Presented
Solid Parking Enterprise Component
Waste Facilities Funds Unit
$1,480 $297 $9,925 $2,010
96 - 3,326 39
421 297 1,728 (58)
398 297 1,945 -
- - 3,478 -
414 - 4,028 42
137 - 160 132
295 852 10,269 1,022
799 852 99,373 1,594
- - 20,607

734 852 77,320 1,145
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2000

Note N - Reconciliation of Budget Basis to GAAP Basis

A reconciliation for all governmental funds at Dec-
ember 31, 2000 from the budget basis to a GAAP

basis for excess of revenues and other financing

sources over (under) expenditures and other uses
follows (Amounts in 000's):

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
Fund Funds Fund Funds
Budget Basis..............ccoeevveerveerenn.. $2,290 ($15,504) $221 ($10,596)
Net adjustments for
revenue accruals............ccccceeunne. 4,209 (429) (55) (501)
Net adjustments for
expenditure accruals..........cc...c..... 2,083 3,777 (2,524) 8,759
Net adjustments for
encumbrances........ccccceeveeeeiiiennn. 1,963 14,123 - 5,686
Net adjustments for other
financing sources (uses) accruals. (1,939) (322) 2,511 (21,056)
GAAP BaSIS.......cocoveeeeeeeceeenesieannnns $8,606 $1,645 $153 ($17,708)
Note O - Interfund Transfers
A summary of operating transfers by fund type follows
(Amounts in 000's):
Transfer To
Transfer Special Debt Capital
From Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Total
General.........ccceceveveerieeennns $15,556 $6,592 $12,054 $- $34,202
Special Revenue................. - 322 - - 322
Debt Service........cccccceennn.e. - - - - 0
Capital Projects................... - - - 1,596 1,596
Enterprise.......cccoeveerieennne - - - 21 21
Total.......ueeeeeeeeeeeenn $15,556 $6,914 $12,054 $1,617 $36,141

Note P - Amendments to Original Appropriations
Budget

Amendments beyond the object level must be ap-
proved by the Board of County Commissioners. In
2000, the original appropriation measure was in-
creased by the Commissioners approximately as

follows: General Fund, $9.2 million; Special Revenue

Funds, $19.7 million; Capital Projects, $10 million;
Enterprise Funds, $400 thousand; Internal Service
Funds, $542 thousand.
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Note Q - Contingencies

The County owns and operated a landfill site located in
the western portion of the County. The site accepted solid
waste from a number of private and industrial waste haulers
from 1954 to its closure in 1976. A solid waste transfer
station was operated from May, 1980 through July, 1991.
This site is now closed and the County no longer operates
a landfill. State and federal laws require the County to
cleanup, monitor and maintain the site.

The County engaged a consultant to complete a study
regarding the cleanup, monitoring and maintenance of the
site. This study will be subject to review by the Ohio
Environmental Protection Agency. The study estimates
approximately $12.4 million will be needed to enact the plan,
of which approximately $162 thousand of the costs is to be
incurred in the next year. The current liability of $162
thousand is included in accounts payable in the Capital
Projects Fund with the remaining $12.3 million in the
General Long-Term Obligation Account Group. Actual cost
may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations. Funding is expected to be obtained
from the issuance of General Obligation notes or bonds,
and from the State Infrastructure Bond Fund. Other
potential sources of revenue include indemnification by
generators for response costs incurred.

The County is a defendant in a number of other claims
and lawsuits which may be classified as routine litigation.
In addition, the County is a defendant in numerous other
claims and lawsuits ranging from tort liability to civil rights
litigation. Management believes that any settlement related
to these claims and lawsuits will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the County.

The County participates in a number of Federal and State
assisted grant programs. The major programs are through:
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction; Community
Development Block Grant; Ohio Department of Human
Services; and Ohio Department of Mental Health. These
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by
grantors or their representatives. Audits of certain
programs have been completed under guidance of OMB
circular A-133 and are included in a separately issued
report. There were no material instances of noncompliance
or findings noted within these reports.

Note R - Joint Venture

Lucas County has entered into a contractual agreement
with the City of Toledo, Defiance County, Fulton County,
Henry County, and Williams County to form the Corrections
Commission of Northwest Ohio to operate a regional jail in
northwestern Ohio. Each entity is responsible for a portion
of the capital and operating budget as follows:

Cityof Toledo .......... 35.65%
Lucas County .......... 31.84%
Defiance County . ....... 9.35%
FultonCounty .......... 8.65%
Williams County ........ 8.65%
HenryCounty .......... 5.86%

100.00%

The Corrections Commission of Northwest Ohio is an 18
member board made up of the president of the Board of
County Commissioners, Sheriff, presiding judge of the Court
of Common Pleas for each County, the Mayor, Chief of
Police, and presiding Municipal Court Judge for The City of
Toledo. Each participating entity has an equal degree of
control over budgeting and financing.

All debt for the construction of the jail was incurred by the
participating governmental agencies, and are not liabilities
of the Corrections Commission of Northwest Ohio. Lucas
County has approximately $2.3 million of bonds outstanding
at year end for construction of the regional jail.

Complete financial statements of the Corrections
Commission of Northwest Ohio can be obtained from its
administrative office as follows:

CORRECTIONS COMMISSION OF NORTHWEST OHIO
03151 ROAD 24.25 RT. 1, BOX 100-A
STRYKER, OHIO 43557
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Note S - Risk Management

Self-Funded Insurance: The County is self-funded for
dental and health benefits. The dental program is
administered by Stateline TPA, Inc., which provides
claims review and processing services. Each County fund
is charged for its proportionate share of the cost for
covered employees. Payment of these benefits is
accounted for in an internal service fund. The County
records a liability for incurred but unreported claims at
year end based upon an actuarial estimate provided by
Stateline TPA, Inc. The County also maintains a Self-
Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and a Risk
Retention fund to manage liability insurance County-wide.

The claims liability of $6.3 million reported in the
internal service funds at December 31, 2000, is based on
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10 which
requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including
estimates of costs relating to incurred but not re-
ported claims, be reported (see table below). Changes in
the funds’ claims liability amounts for 1999 and 2000
were:

Change in
Provision
Balance at Current for Workers Balance
Beginning Year Compensation Claim at End
of Year Clams Claims Payments of Year
1999..  $8,655 $20,747 $(2,548) $20,037 $6,817
2000.. $6,817 $18,280 $(361) $18,483 $6,253

Note T - Change in Method of Accounting

Prior to 2000 the County reported public domain or
infrastructure general fixed assets, consisting of roads,
bridges, culverts, and other ancillary assets, as
expenditures in governmental funds and did not capitalize
the related costs in the general fixed assets account
group. The method for accounting for such infrastructure
costs was changed for the year 2000. The County
continues to report such costs as expenditures in the
governmental funds but now capitalizes the related costs
into the general fixed asset account group. The
cumulative effect of this change in method of accounting
is reflected in the general fixed assets and investment in
general fixed assets increase from December 31,1999 to
January 1, 2000 of $266,370 from $167,981 to $434,351,
respectively. Such infrastructure assets were valued at
historical cost where available and estimated where not
available based upon current expenditure amounts
adjusted by price trends for Federal-Aid Highway
Construction. The categories of infrastructure assets
capitalized and their related amounts were as follows:

Category Amount Capitalized
Roads ................. $253,663
Bridges............. .... 6,710
Culverts . ........... .... 1,630
Construction in Progress . .. 4,367
Total .............. $266.370
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DaimlerChrylser introduced it’s latest SUV, The 2002
Jeep Liberty at the Toledo North Assembly Plant, which is
one of the most modern vehicle assembly operations in the
world. The new 300 acre 2.01 million square foot facility
cost more than $750 million to build with an additional $250
million in tooling and equipment.

The two shift 2000 employee operation will produce 800
Liberty’s per day, available in four trims, Sport 2WD, Sport
4WD, Limited 2WD and Limited 4WD, ranging in price from
$16,450 to $25,000 thousand.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Expenditures:
General Government-
Legislative and executive
Department of Personnel-
Personal services...............ccoovvveievieeeeeennn $481 $438 $43
Materials and supplies.............c..cccoovveeirecennnn. 9 4 5
Charges and services................c..ccooceeeeeeeeenenn. 145 139 6
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 10 7 3
Commissioners-
Personal services...............cccooeeeviveiiceeee. 424 413 11
Materials and supplies..............ccccooeeivceencnn. 14 12 2
Charges and services................cccccocvvoeoeeenennn. 97 87 10
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 11 10 1
Management and Budget-
Personal services.............ccccoovveieeeieeeien. 461 356 105
Materials and supplies...............cccccoccvevevceeeenn. 9 9 0
Charges and services..............c.cccccccoovevcveennn.. 112 102 10
Capital outlay and equipment............................. 14 12 2
Auditor-
Personal services...............ccoovoveviciieeeieee. 1,277 1,236 41
Materials and supplies...............c.ccccvvverevenennn.. 102 89 13
Charges and services................cccccooeveeveenn.... 277 261 16
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 32 31 1
Auditor Personal Property-
Personal services.............ccccooeeviiiiciccin. 389 369 20
Materials and supplies...............c.cccoooveveceecenen. 25 23 2
Charges and services.............c..ccccovveeveenennnnnn. 19 18 1
Capital outlay and equipment............................ 8 6 2
Auditor Real Property Evaluation-
Personal services..............ccooooeeiieviiciiiece, 730 675 55
Materials and supplies................cccococovevrietenn.n. 11 9 2
Charges and Services...............c.cococueeevevevnnnnnn. 15 13 2
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 17 16 1
Treasurer-
Personal services...............cccoooevevviiiieeciceen. 962 944 18
Materials and supplies..................cccccoeveveviinnnnn. 30 27 3
Charges and services.................ccococovereveennnnnn. 207 188 19
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 31 31 0
Treasurer Personal Property-
Personal services.................cooeeeveiieeceeeen. 205 199 6
Materials and supplies................ccccoceevrceennn. 1 1 0
Charges and services................ccccocvoeervevnnennnn. 9 7 2

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
General Government - continued
Legislative and executive - continued
Budget Commission-
Personal SEIVICES..........ccoovveiiecieeieeeee e 81 80 1
Materials and supplies...........cccccoevvviiienineenens 1 0 1
Charges and Services...........cccccecvvvveviecciinnnne 2 1 1
Board of Revision-
Personal Services............ccovevieieeicvrccicnieeeene, 150 142 8
Materials and supplies...........ccccocviecininiiniienns 3 3 0
Capital outlay and equipment............................. 21 21 0
Audit-
Charges and SEeIViCes............ccccoeiininiiiciniennns 170 135 35
Planning Commission-
Charges and Services...............cocccovvieiniiiinnnnnns 434 434 0
Data Processing-
Personal SerViCEeS............coovveveeecciiiiiieeeeeeeennn. 1,745 1,637 108
Materials and supplies..........ccccccoveiiieniniiennne. 27 20 7
Charges and ServiCes.............ccccccvevveiiiininnnnn, 370 310 60
Capital outlay and equipment.................ccccoeeee 649 616 33
Hotel Motel Administration-
Personal ServiCes............ocooveriveeerencniciceeeee. 57 56 1
Materials and supplies...........ccocceerinieniieniiens 2 0 2
Charges and Services...........c.ccooceevieiieciicnnnnnn. 3 1 2
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 5 0 5
County Administrator-
Personal Services...........c.ccceeveiviieinciiicniceeee 498 473 25
Materials and supplies..........ccccccovieeniiniiiieennn. 7 5 2
Charges and Services...........c.cccecvevvvienciieniennn. 86 61 25
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 11 10 1
Department of Purchasing-
Personal services.............ccoveeviiiiincniiiiiiices 350 343 7
Materials and supplies.............ccccoccenvviiininnnnnnn. 11 7 4
Charges and Services.............ccccccoviiiiiiininnnnene. 13 9 4
Capital outlay and equipment............................. 3 3 0
Board of Elections-
Personal SerViCes.............cooovveveiiiiveeeeeeeecneeeeennn 1,178 1,145 33
Materials and supplies..........c.cccoveinieicencenn. 192 185 7
Charges and Services.............c..ccoccvviiinieniennns 918 909 9
Capital outlay and equipment..................ccoceeeene. 17 16 1
Capital Maintenance-
Charges and services.............ccocevieviniiinnienniene. 597 499 98
Capital outlay and equipment..................c.ccoeee. 228 135 93

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

General Government - continued
Legislative and executive - continued

Facilities-

Personal services

Materials and supplies...........c..cccecvevviviieienneennnn.
Charges and Services..............ccoccvevveiecnecncennn,
Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Recorder-

Personal services

Materials and supplies...........c.c.cooceeiiicieniiinninn.
Charges and Services...........c.cccocevvenienieieenenn.
Capital outlay and equipment..............c.cccccoeni.

Taxes-

Charges and services.............cccoceeveevinienieennnne,

Insurance-

Personal services

Charges and services...............cccoevveveeveeneennnnn.

Other-

Charges and Services.............c..ccceveevvenecnnennn.

Total legislative and execttive.........................

Judicial
Prosecutor-

Personal services

Materials and supplies............cccccoeoiiiiiiiiiiin.
Charges and ServiCes............ccceeevveeecveceeeennnn.
Capital outlay and equipment.............................

Court Rehabilitation & Correction-

Personal services

Materials and supplies............cccoovvvevieiiiiiiiin.
Charges and ServiCes............ccceeevveevvieereecnieenee.
Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Court of Appeals-

Materials and supplies..............ccccoeveieieiiinecnin,
Charges and ServiCes............ccccoeevvveeviecee e,
Capital outlay and equipment.............................

Common Pleas Court-
Personal services.............cccoooviieneniieienee
Materials and supplies...........cccccceevviiiiiiiiieeenens
Charges and Services...........c..ccccoveevveieieeerennene
Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

3,273 2,992 281
282 270 12
7,337 6,806 531
69 59 10
657 655 2
34 33 1
38 35 3
1 1 0
257 167 90
81 12 69
1,133 754 379
201 150 51
27,326 24,922 2,404
4,545 4,423 122
59 55 4
112 102 10
13 11 2
359 350 9
12 12 0
40 37 3
10 9 1
46 42 4
182 146 36
16 15 1
2,580 2,540 40
108 98 10
353 306 a7
65 64 1

continued



(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

General Government - continued

Judicial - continued
Work Release-
Personal services...................

Materials and supplies...........ccccoccveveniecinrirennnn.

Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Jury Commission-
Personal services...................

Materials and supplies..............ccccoceviriinnnieiennn,

Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Adult Probation-
Personal services...................

Materials and supplies.............ccccceovvvvrrincininninnn,

Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Pretrial Presentence Division-
Personal services...................

Materials and supplies.............ccccocivieriniennnnn.

Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Domestic Relations Court-
Personal services...................

Materials and supplies...............ccoceeveeciennn.

Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Juvenile Court-
Personal services...................

Materials and supplies............cccccocveeeviiecieenienn..

Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Common Pleas Security-
Personal services...................

Materials and supplies............cc.cccceerrvrnreinnnnnnne.

Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Revised

Budget

1,504
100
247

35

71
25
242

1,163
115
39

1,520
109
47

18

2,133
183

75

6,153
193
605
118

837

20

Variance:
Favorable
Actual (Unfavorable)

1,496 8
91 9
228 19
32 3
70 1
24 1
234 8
3 3
1,157 $6
112 3
25 14
14 4
1,512 8
107 2
33 14
16 2
2,122 11
16 1
160 23
75 0
6,066 87
179 14
535 70
114 4
836 1
2 0
15 5
9 0

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

General Government - continued
Judicial - continued
Detention Home-
Personal services...........ccccccoovveevveeiicciecnene.
Materials and supplies.............ccocooevevieeiiieenn.
Charges and ServiCes............cccceeevveevieeveecreeennen.
Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Probate Court-
Personal services..............ccoccevininininenenennn,
Materials and supplies.............ccccooeviiininnnnennns
Charges and Services..........ccccecvvevrieeiirienennnnn,
Capital outlay and equipment................c.cce.ee.

Integrated Justice System-
Personal services............coccoocvvviieiencnicrieiene
Materials and supplies.............ccccooerivriiiiniennn.
Charges and Services...........cccccoeeveevviecreecnneenen.
Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Clerk of Courts-
Personal Services...........c.cccovoviinienieneceeee.
Materials and supplies............ccccoovvreirerinennn.nn.
Charges and services.............c..ccceeveeveneceennne.
Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Community Supervision-
Personal services...........cccooeeiieiieiiiienne
Materials and supplies............ccccooveeivieviiiiennennnn.
Charges and ServiCes...........cooceevvveeeirecrieenenne.
Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Public Defenders
Charges and ServiCes...........ccoceoevveeeeeeciieecnen,

Municipal Courts-
Personal services............ccccoccoeeveviiciiecicee
Charges and services.............cccceevreiiiniennenen.

Law Library-
Personal services.............cccoceeeviiiviiciecceee,

Miscellaneous-
Charges and Services............cccccoveevieiceiecneenen.

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

2,365 2,346 19
277 270 7
410 396 14
58 56 2
1,624 1,621 3
41 37 4
85 75 10
34 33 1
112 104 8
1 1 0
257 250 7
32 22 10
1,509 1,492 17
233 214 19
72 65 7
56 34 22
440 432 8
2 2 0
110 103 7
3 2 1
3,630 3,405 225
615 572 43
126 112 14
117 112 5
177 166 11
36,490 35,415 1,075

continued



Public safety
Medical Corrections-
Personal services.......

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Materials and supplies...........cccccevervenieccnieenns

Charges and services

Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Coroner-
Personal services.......

Materials and sUpplies...........cccccovirveeniiiiiciiinens

Charges and services

Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Sheriff - New Class-
Charges and services

Sheriff - Corrections center-

Personal services.......

Materials and supplies............c.ccocvvieiiiiiinininnn.

Charges and services

Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Sheriff - Law Enforcement-

Personal services.......

Materials and sUPPlies..........ccccevveeeencniciniiinnns

Charges and services

Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Sheriff - Administration
Personal services.......

Materials and supplies..........cccoccevviiniiniiiiinnnn.

Charges and services

Capital outlay and equipment..............................

Sheriff - 911 Call Takers-

Personal services.......
Charges and services

Public Safety Contracts-

Personal services.......
Charges and services

Public Safety Court Security-

Personal services.......
Charges and services

Revised

_Budget

671
3
394
8

$899

109

15

12,925
209
1,242
29

3,472
164
577

1,718

370
17

580

1,048
15

3,180
57

Variance:
Favorable
Actual (Unfavorable)

638 33
2 1
383 1
6 2
$898 $1
34 6
82 27
1 0
0 15
12,499 426
207 2
1,203 39
28 1
3,467 5
161 3
572 5
8 0
1,593 125
43 13
293 77
16 1
578 2
12 0
929 119
15 0
3,032 148
55 2

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Public safety - continued
Incarceration Facility-
Charges and services.................cccceovcvcereeenn.. 3,229 2,813 416
Other-
Charges and Services...................c..ccocvevevenenen... 613 613 0
Total public safety................cccccccovevcvvveunn... 31,661 30,181 1,480
Public works
Engineer-
Personal services.............c..ccooovvevevieiveeeenn. 136 131 5
Materials and supplies................ccocoovveevveeren., 18 17 1
Charges and services................c..coccooveeeeeennn.. 72 68 4
Capital outlay and equipment............................. 1 0 1
Ditch Maintenance-
Personal Services..............c..cocooveveeieeeeeen 11 0 11
Charges and services..................cccccooeevvveeennn.. 108 18 90
Total public WOIKS................ccocovcveeecvaeann. 346 234 112
Health
Maumee Valley Historical Society-
Charges and services..................ccccooveveceeennn.. $30 $30 $0
Registration of Vital Statistics-
Charges and services...............c..coccooeeeeveeenenn.. 9 0 9
Other Health-
Charges and services................c.cccoevevvcenennn... 1,238 746 492
Total health.................cccooveeeeeeeeeec. 1,277 776 501
Human services
Veterans Service Commission-
Personal services...............cccoooveevveeecieeeeen. 353 350 3
Materials and supplies...................ccccocoovvvivennn. 8 7 1
Charges and Services....................cccooveveeveneen.. 638 631 7
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 21 21 0
Veterans Service-
Charges and services...............ccocceevveveneennn... 23 22 1
Miscellaneous
Charges and services....................c.ccocoovevveennnnn. 197 197 0
Total human services................cccoovevvevani.... 1,240 1,228 12

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Conservation and recreation
Recreation-
Personal SErViCeS............cccuevieiiieieereeie e 798 776 22
Materials and supplies............cc.ccceoevvenerriennenne. 163 157 6
Charges and Services...........c.cccevverivveeeeeeennn. 566 536 30
Capital outlay and equipment............................. 55 39 16
Agriculture-
Charges and SEerViCes...........ccccocevevirenenenennenn. 461 459 2
Miscellaneous-
Charges and ServiCes............cccocvevveceeneeneennennen. 57 57 0
Total conservation and recreation................... 2,100 2,024 76
Miscellaneous
Contingencies-
Charges and Services............ccoceeveveeiennicneennens 592 0 592
Other-
Charges and Services..........c.cccoceecvreeenrienicicecnncns 638 595 43
Total miscellaneous................cccccoevveeeecvvnnn. 1,230 595 635
Total expenditures................cccoccecvverveuennnee. $101,670 $95,375 $6,295
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
December 31, 2000

Special Revenue Funds- The Special Revenue funds
account for all specific financial resources (other than
expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are legally
restricted for specified expenditure purposes. The following
are the Special Revenue funds which Lucas County
operates:

Public Assistance- To account for various federal and
state grants and reimbursements as well as transfers from
the General Fund used for human service programs.

Community Mental Health- To account for revenues
received from a county-wide property tax levy, federal and
state grants, and reimbursements used for various county
mental health programs.

Real Estate Assessment- To account for state mandated
county-wide real estate reappraisals.

Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax- To account for monies
received by the County for State gasoline tax and vehicle
registration fees used for county road and bridge improve-
ments programs.

Children Services Board- To account for a county-wide
property tax levy, state grants and reimbursements used for
county child care programs.

Board of Mental Retardation- To account for a county-
wide property tax levy, state grants and reimbursements
used for care and services for the mentally handicapped
and retarded.

Emergency Medical Services- To account for
emergency medical care financed by a county-wide sales
tax.

Emergency Telephone System- To account for a
county-wide property tax levy used for emergency
telephone assistance

Zoo Operating- To account for a county-wide property
tax levy. Monies are distributed directly to the Toledo
Zoological Society.

Child Support Enforcement Agency- To account for
revenues from: fees, fines, federal and state grants and

other similar revenue sources, and to account for legally
restricted expenditures used for the collection and protec-
tion of support payments made and owed to parents and
children.

Other Special Revenue Funds- To account for revenues
from: fees, taxes, fines, federal and state grants, licenses
and other similar revenue sources, and to account for
legally restricted expenditures for specified purposes.
Summarized information on the financial activity and
balances of the following Special Revenue funds include:

Dog and Kennel

Hotel Lodging Tax

Litter Control

Youth Services

Community Development Grant
Emergency Management Agency
Marriage License

Coroner’s Lab Fund

Law Enforcement Drug Fund
Delinquent Real Estate Tax and Assessment Collection Fund
Tax Installment Payment Plan
Emergency Planning Fund
Indigent Guardianship

Drug & Alcohol Services Board
Community MR/RES Services
Senior Services

Economic Development

Indigent Drivers

Probation Service

Motor Vehicle Enforcement and Education
Building Regulations

Certificate of Title Administration
Recorder Equipment

Juvenile Treatment Center
Juvenile Felony Care

Adult Probation Grant
Correctional Treatment Facility

e ®© o e o e o © o o o o © ° © © ° & o o o o o o o o o

When compared to combined Special Revenue fund
totals, other special revenue funds comprise less than 10%
in each of the following categories: assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenditures.
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Combining Chart of Revenues and Expenditures
All Special Revenue Funds

Millions
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Assets and other debits:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents

Pooled investments.............ccccocevevivieeenns

Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables)

Due from other governments....................
Inventory. materials and supplies..............

Total assets..........coeeeveeeeeeveeenne...

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable........................

Accrued wages and benefits....................

Due to other funds.........................
Due to other governments.............

Deferred revenue............ccccovvveevenneenenn.

Fund balances:

Reserved for encumbrances.....................

Reserved for inventory..................

Reserved for loans receivable...................

Unreserved-
Designated for charity..........

Undesignated..............cccccovenveennn.

Total fund balances........................

Total liabilities and
fund balances..................

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Community Real Motor Children

Public Mental Estate Vehicle and Services

Assistance Health Assessment Gas Tax Board
$2,215 $502 $275 $495 $4,042
13,361 3,027 1,660 2,988 24,387
- 9,556 - - 22,041
- - - 36 24
1 1,910 - 726 825

- - - 218 -
$15,5677 $14,995 $1,935 $4,463 $51,319
$4,660 $4,688 $65 $216 $290
1,180 49 a9 280 866
27 1 3 - 15

2 - - - -
- 9,382 - - 21,639
5,869 14,120 167 496 22,810
380 3,234 311 1,623 928

- - - 218 -
9,328 (2,359) 1,457 2,226 27,581
9,708 875 1,768 3,967 28,509
$15,577 $14,995 $1,935 $4,463 $51,319
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Child Other
Board of Emergency Emergency Support Special
Mental Medical Telephone Zoo Enforcement Revenue
Retardation Services System Operating Agency Funds Total
$1,548 $158 $1,154 $- $580 $2,091 $13,060
9,343 954 6,961 3 3,498 12,616 78,798
22,517 - 4,531 4,532 - 3,100 66,277
10 - - - - 58 128
- - - - - 453 453
1,307 - - - - 1,662 6,431
- - - - - 0 218
$34,725 $1,112 $12,646 $4,535 $4,078 $19,980 $165,365
$564 $88 $799 $0 $83 $2,275 $13,728
1,402 60 19 - 404 589 4,948
- 8 - - 12 17 83
- - - - - 2 4
22,137 - 4,448 4,449 - 3,042 65,097
24,103 156 5,266 4,449 499 5,925 83,860
2,245 614 2,035 - 470 2,383 14,123
- - - - - 0 218
- - - - - 453 453
- - - - - 104 104
8,377 342 5,345 86 3,109 11,115 66,607
10,622 956 7,380 86 3,579 14,055 81,505
$34,725 $1,112 $12,646 $4,535 $4,078 $19,980 $165,365
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Community Real Motor Children
Public Mental Estate Vehicle and Services
Assistance Health Assessment Gas Tax ‘Board
Revenues:
TAXES....v oot eaeeenen $- $8,889 $- $- $20,494
Charges for services..........cccccccevveeeeeeecnncnne - - 3,288 73 -
Fines and forfeits............ccccoveveviieenieenns - - - 53 -
Intergovernmental revenue..............c.......... 60,120 22,186 - 14,200 14,224
Miscellaneous revenue............c.ccoccoeeeennnn 100 646 51 208 3,057
Total revenues................oeeeveveeeeeeeenae 60,220 31,721 3,339 14,534 37,775
Expenditures
Current:
Legislative and executive...........cc.cccccene. - - 3,454 - -
Judicial........c.ooovieiiii - - - - -
Publicsafety.........cccoooviiiiees - - - - -
Public WOrKS.....ccoooiiiieiieieeeee e - - - 15,546 -
Health.......oovieeeeeeceeeeeeeeee e - 38,059 - - -
Human Services..........cccccceevevvieeneecncnnnn. 63,880 - - - 29,912
Conservation and recreation...................... - - - - -
Miscellaneous...........ccoeevieerciciincciinnnnn. - - - - -
Total expenditures...............cccoveeuecuennen. 63,880 38,059 3,454 15,546 29,912
Excess revenue over (under)
exXPenditures..............cceceeeeeeeeeeeeencaan. (3,660) (6,338) (116) (1,012) 7,863
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfersin...........ccccooceecininns 3,038 - - - -
Operating transfers (out)............ccccoeceenenn. - - - (157) -
Total other financing
SOUrCES (USES)......cccuevveeeeeceeeriecirrennn 3,038 0 0 (157) 0
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses................. _ (622) (6,338) (116) (1,169) 7,863
Fund balance at beginning
Of VBN ... 10,330 7,213 1,884 5,136 20,646
Fund balance at end of year...................... $9,708 $875 $1,768 $3,967 $28,509




Child Other
Board of Emergency Emergency Support Special
Mental Medical Telephone Zoo Enforcement Revenue
Retardation Services System Operating Agency Funds Total

$20,922 $- $4,213 $4,214 $- $6,532 $65,264
12 - - - 650 5,443 9,466

- - - - - 77 130

3,141 - - - 10,657 26,794 151,322
9,150 20 6 2 163 1,099 14,502
33,225 20 4,219 4,216 11,470 39,945 240,684

- - - - - 7,683 11,137

- - - - 10,964 3,706 14,670

- 8,098 5,585 - - 7,631 21,314

- - - - - 0 15,546
35,256 - - - - 13,623 86,938

- - - - - 2,429 96,221

- - - 4,267 - 127 4,394

- - - - - 4,053 4,053
35,256 8,098 5,585 4,267 10,964 39,252 254,273
(2,031) (8,078) (1,366) (51) 506 694 (13,589)

- 7,900 2,000 - - 2618 15,556
- - (120) - - (45) (322)

0 7,900 1,880 0 0 2,573 15,234

(2,031) (178) 514 (51) 506 3,267 1,645
12,653 1,134 6,866 137 3,073 10,788 79,860
$10,622 $956 $7,380 $86 $3,579 $14,055 $81,505
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

JOB AND FAMILY SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue.....................cccooeeeeennn.
Miscellaneous revenue.................cccooeeeeeeeeieeceeeeneenn.

Total revenues...............coooeeeeeeeeeceeseeeeeaseeeeenn.

Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Personal services..............c.ccccoovviiiiiiiice
Materials and supplies................c.c..ocoovveeeeveeenn.
Charges and Services................cccoceevevvveeneeenn..
Capital outlay and equipment................................

Total expenditures.................c.ccooeveeeeeeeeeverennn.
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in...........cccocooooviiiiiiiiccc
Total other financing sources...............................

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures...................c...........

Fund balance at beginning of year...................c...........
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................
Fund balance atend of year..................c.ccooovevenenn

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$59,824 $60,120 $296
111 100 (11)
59,935 60,220 285
25,935 25,309 626
551 490 61
41,607 37,145 4,462
331 292 39
68,424 63,236 5,188
(8,489) (3,016) 5,473
3,038 3,038 0
3,038 3,038 0
(5,451) 22 5,473
14,291 14,291 0
664 664 0
$9,504 $14,977 $5,473
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES. ..ottt $8,031 $8,933 $902
Intergovernmental revenue.................cccooevieiiiieens 27,774 22,021 (5,753)
Miscellaneous revenue................cccevcverveenieniiceennenns 1,300 646 (654)
Total reVeNnUES.............c.ccoveeeeeraveeieieieneann 37,105 31,600 (5,505)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal Services.............cccccooeviieiiiniiceeeeene 828 730 98
Materials and supplies...........c.ccccooeeiiiiiieiiieenieene 27 22 5
Charges and Services............c.ccooovereenieencennene. 45,678 42,418 3,260
Capital outlay and equipment..................coccoeeeenee. 52 26 26
Total expenditures...................ccoeeveveeveccieaiiean. 46,585 43,196 3,389
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (9,480) (11,596) (2,116)
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year................... (1,120) (1,120) 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 8,763 8,763 0
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year.................cccocn... ($1,837) ($3,953) ($2,116)




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

REAL ESTATE ASSESSMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for services..............ccooooveevieeeeiceiieee $3,243 $3,289 $46
Miscellaneous revenue................ccccccoeevveeeeeciceen, 50 50 0]
Total revenues....................ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenn.. 3,293 3,339 46
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal services...............ccocevvivveeccic e 2,240 2,133 107
Materials and supplies.............c..cccoeeeeviiecnenn. 57 50 7
Charges and ServiCes..............cocoeovvveeeveeeceecneennn. 1,244 1,235 9
Capital outlay and equipment................................ 663 403 260
Total expenditures..................ccocoveeceeeeeeeeeceaannn. 4,204 3,821 383
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (911) (482) 429
Fund balance at beginning of year................................ 1,830 1,830 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 263 263 0
Fund balance atend of year....................ccoooovvevinnnnn. $1,182 $1,611 $429




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MOTOR VEHICLE and GAS TAX - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Charges for SErViCes.............ccovveeeveninnncceneeene $75 $73 ($2)
Fines and forfeits.............ccccocivininninicee, 55 53 (2)
Intergovernmental revenue.............c.ccocoeninenincnenne 15,585 14,171 (1,414)
Miscellaneous revenue.................cccoeeuvvveneereenienieenne 105 187 82

Total reVeNUES...............oooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeae 15,820 14,484 (1,336)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public works
Personal ServiCes...........cccoevevieeiiieeiieeeee e 5,477 5,156 321
Materials and supplies............cccoevviiininienenennn. 910 811 99
Charges and services.............ccccccueveeene. frrerereeeenes 13,712 11,034 2,678
Capital outlay and equipment...............ccccovreene 664 654 10
Total expenditures...................ccceceeeeeeeeeeeeceeucnnes 20,763 17,655 3,108
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (4,943) (3,171) 1,772
Fund balance at beginning of year...........c...cccoceeeeenin. 2,503 2,503 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 2,440 2,440 0
Fund balance atend of year...............c.ccccceoeeverrnenennne. $0 $1,772 $1,772
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CHILDREN SERVICES BOARD - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _(Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES.....i oot $20,665 $20,596 ($69)
Intergovernmental revenue....................c.ccooeveevennn 12,803 14,218 1,415
Miscellaneous revenue..................c.ccocooeveveeeieeecenen, 3,600 3,066 (534)
Total revenues.................eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeean. 37,068 37,880 812
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Personal services...............cccoooeeevvieieeeeeeeen. 18,444 17,123 1,321
Materials and supplies................ccccooovevvevirinennne. 996 930 66
Charges and Services..............c.cccoeveeveeeecreeennnnn. 17,856 12,652 5,204
Capital outlay and equipment................................ 623 299 324
Total expenditures..................cc.ccocoveeeeeveeveeannn. 37,919 31,004 6,915
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (851) 6,876 7,727
Fund balance at beginning of year............................... 19,078 19,078 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 1,469 1,469 0]
Fund balance atend of year...............c..ccccoveverenennen. $19,696 $27,423 $7,727
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
BOARD OF MENTAL RETARDATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES.....eceeeeveceeeereeete ettt na e $20,781 $21,020 $239
Charges for Services.............ccocererenineninineseneene 68 2 (66)
Intergovernmental revenue.................cccocveeveiiniennnne 5,564 3,481 (2,083)
Miscellaneous revenue................ccoeeveecieeieniceceeennns 7,021 9,162 2,141
Total revenuUes...............eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeieveeann. 33,434 33,665 231
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal ServiCes............ccovvvvevecveeeeecieee e 28,831 27,967 864
Materials and supplies..............c.ccoceevvevveveiiennens 1,211 997 214
Charges and SEIVICES...........c.cccovverrireniieniieennnne 11,991 8,767 3,224
Capital outlay and equipment.................cccceeeee. 549 443 106
Total expenditures...................ccccoueeveevvesvecevanennsn. 42,582 38,174 4,408
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (9,148) (4,509) 4,639
Fund balance at beginning of year.............c..ccoocvee. 10,224 10,224 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 2,670 2670 0
Fund balance atend of year................ccccoeeieiieceennnn, $3,746 $8,385 $4,639
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue.................ccooveeveeveeeereeenenne $8 $20 $12
Total revenues................ccoceveveeeeeeeeieeeeseeen. 8 20 12
Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safety
Personal SeIVICES............ccovvveevvvieeciveeeeeieeeeeeeeens 1,195 1,158 37
Materials and supplies.........c..cccoeevirieeiecicecnen. 513 474 39
Charges and SErViCes............cccocvevvrerercrecrennenne. 7,826 7,772 54
Capital outlay and equipment................cc..cccocee. 301 279 22
Total expenditures..................cccceceeveeeceenvceueccnnenen. 9,835 9,683 152
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (9,827) (9,663) 164
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in...........c.ccccooeveeciiiiiiiiinennn, 7,900 7,900 0
Total other financing sources..................c.......... 7,900 7,900 0
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures...............c..c.ccccoccoiennc. (1,927) (1,763) 164
Fund balance at beginning of year...............cccceceeee. 791 791 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 1,395 1,395 0
Fund balance at end of year.............c..cccceevnvninincnnnne $259 $423 $164
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

TAXES. ..ot eeeeeeeee et et et ettt en et $4,106 $4,234 $128

Miscellaneous revenue.................ccceeeveveeseeneeneennenns 2 6 4
Total reVENUES..............c..oeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesveeeeieveaeenns 4108 4,240 132

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal Services...........cccooviveienieeniieceiccnee e 574 355 219
Materials and supplies.............ccccooveeveerieneeneencene 18 16 2
Charges and Services.............cccoceecvenenicicccninnnnnn, 8,916 7,288 1,628
Capital outlay and equipment..................c.ccceeee. 113 86 27
Total expenditures.................ccccceeveereeereecrcrncnne. 9,621 7,745 1,876
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (5,513) (3,505) 2,008
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in............cccocviiniiiiii 0 2,000 2,000
Total other financing SoUrcCes.............................. 0 2,000 2,000
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures....................cccccccu..... (5,513) (1,505) 4,008
Fund balance at beginning of year.............ccccoceeieiees 5,975 5,975 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...................... 822 822 0
Fund balance atend of year..............ccccocvninirenennnne $1,284 $5,292 $4,008
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ZOO OPERATING - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _(Unfavorabile)
Revenues:
TAXES.....eieeeteeree et $4,100 $4,235 $135
Miscellaneous revenue.................c.ccocooveeivnecveneeennn. 200 2 (198)
Totalrevenues.....................cccoeveeeeeeeeeeeean.. 4,300 4,237 (63)
Expenditures:
Current:
Conservation and Recreation
Charges and Services..............c..cccooouvveeeeveeeeenen, 4,475 4,267 208
Total expenditures....................ccoceueeeueeceveeennn.... 4,475 4,267 208
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (175) (30) 145
Fund balance at beginning of year.............................. 32 32 0
Fund balance atend of year..................c.cccooeeevenennnn.n. ($143) $2 $145
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES..........c.cccruieuiuemeuceneiereienerereneenens $1,376 $780 ($596)
Intergovernmental revenue...............c.ccocoeciiiinininnn. 9,982 10,656 674
Miscellaneous revenuUE...............cccooeeeeveeiueneenieeceeennnns 48 163 115
TOtal rEVENUES............oveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeereseeesieans 11,406 11,599 193
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial
Personal SeIVICES.........c...ooevveeeeceeeeeiree e eeenes 9,152 8,382 770
Materials and SUPPHES..........c.ccoeeeeeiiiriiieieeieeeee 361 239 122
Charges and ServiCes............ccceceeveeeveeniinccnennenn 3,468 2,968 500
Capital outlay and equipment................ccccoeennnn 119 32 87
Total expenditures................c.cccceeceeeeeeveceeceeceneeenee. 13,100 11,621 1,479
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ (1,694) (22) 1,672
Fund balance at beginning of year..............ccccccooieiiiis 3,247 3,247 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............................ 342 342 0
Fund balance atend of year..............cccooervenincininnnn. $1,895 $3,567 $1,672
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DOG AND KENNEL - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Charges for ServiCes..............ccooverivveeciieceeiee e, $926 $915 ($11)

Fines and forfeits.................ccocooeiiiiiiiciceee e, 54 55 1

Miscellaneous revenue..............cccocoeiireriierenencnnnnn. 156 111 (45)
Totalrevenues....................ccooeeeveeeeeeveeereensenann. 1,136 1,081 (55)

Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal Services................c.ccoooovveveeeecceseeen, 1,019 952 67
Materials and supplies..............c..ccccoovevevveein.. 121 108 13
Charges and services.................cccoocoeeveeveeennnn. 198 189 9
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 23 23 0
Total expenditures.....................cc.ccccoecveveeanenn.... 1,361 1,272 89
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (225) (191) 34
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in................ccocooeviieiiiicicee. 175 175 0
Total other financing sources..............ccue........ 175 175 0
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures................................... (50) (16) 34
Fund balance at beginning of year............................. 22 22 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 59 59 0
Fund balance atend of year....................coovveveennenn. $31 $65 $34
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
HOTEL LODGING TAX - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES.....ecvieeteeeeieteeieee ettt $3,895 $3,648 ($247)
Total revenues...................ooceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeevaeeann. 3,895 3,648 (247)
Expenditures:
Current:
Miscellaneous
Charges and ServiCes..........c..coveeeveeevveecvee e 3,895 3,797 98
Total expenditures.....................cccoeeeeeeeeeeeennenn.. 3,895 3,797 98
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 0 (149) (149)
Fund balance at beginning of year................ccc.ccooe.... 149 149 0
Fund balance atend of year...................c.cccccoeein. $19 $0 $49
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LITTER CONTROL - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue.............c.c.c.coereencnincnccnn. $- $- $0
Total revenues................cccoceeeeeveeceeeeeeeecneneecnieane 0 0 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Charges and ServiCes............ccccoceveveecceeniicenennns - - 0
Total expenditures..................cccccccevcvcevcerccncneennnn. 0 0 0
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 0 0] 0
Fund balance at beginning of year...........cc.cccccoccoeene. 3 3 0
Fund balance atend of year...................coocveeeeiennnen. $3 $3 $0




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..............cccccoevveeiiiveennnenne. $11,044 $5,070 ($5,974)
Totalrevenues...................c.coceeeeeeeeeceseeieeeeenn, 11,044 5,070 (5,974)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal services............ccccoceviecieciceicecee, 160 100 60
Materials and supplies..............cccccceeieivvievieeennn, 257 206 51
Charges and Services...............cccccoeeveeveeeeeeennnne. 2,378 1,498 880
Capital outlay and equipment............................... 391 352 39
Total legislative and execttive............................... 3,186 2,156 1,030
Judicial
Personal Services...........c.ccooveevveeeeeciecceeeeeene 1,031 731 300
Materials and supplies.............ccccooveveevieveeceennn. 21 9 12
Charges and Services..............ccccoeeuveeuieieeneennnnne. 2,119 2,010 109
Capital outlay and equipment...................coco..... 491 482 9
Total judicial...............coveceeeeeeeeeeeriiieeeieieeeeenn 3,662 3,232 430
Public safety
Personal Services.............cccoeevevieniienecieeeeee 12 7 5
Materials and supplies..............cccoceevieeieciieeennn. 2 0 2
Charges and services..............ccooceeevreirececreennnnee. 162 78 84
Capital outlay and equipment....................c........... 33 2 31
Total public safety..............ccooveeeeeeeveeeeeeiereenn. 209 87 122
Health
Charges and Services...............ccoceeevvnvnrnieinnnnne 257 215 42
Total health..................cccouveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeevvennn. 257 215 42
Conservation & recreation
Charges and Services...............cocevveveeeieenerennnnn, 897 187 710
Total conservation & recreation............................. 897 187 710
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL- (continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Miscellaneous
Charges and SerViCes.............ccoceovvriieivenieeeninn, 60 1 59
Total miscellaneous.................cccceevecerccvvecuncnne. 60 1 59
Total expenditures..................c.ccccccecueeveeeieneenienns 8,271 5,878 2,393
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 2,773 (808) (3,581)
Other financing (uses):
Operating transfers in..............ccccovviiiinicnnns $- $415 $415
Operating transfers (out)..............cccocveiininnnnn, (3,690) 0 3,690
Total other financing sources (Uses)...................... (3,690) 415 4,105
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other
fiN@NCING USES.........eoveiciiiiiciieicieeeieieiee (917) (393) 524
' Fund balance at beginning of year.................ccccccoen. 1,056 1,056 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....................... 926 926 0
Fund balance atend of year............ccccooveeniiniiinn. $1,065 $1,589 $524




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue................ccccoevenincnenenne. $181 $192 $11

Miscellaneous revenue................ccoceevveveeneniecneennens 15 17 2
Total revenuUEes..................cccoeeeeeeeveereceeieseesenenna 196 209 13

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal services............cccooevvieiiiiniinncciceee. 254 248 6
Materials and supplies............ccccoevvreniniinieennene 8 6 2
Charges and Services............ccccoeveereerieneenicennnenne. 64 57 7
Capital outlay and equipment...............c.ccocceeeee 22 21 1
Total expenditures...................ccccoceveeresiesereaienncn. 348 332 16
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (152) (123) 29
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in............cccocceevininiciceneene. 146 148 (2)
Total other financing sources....................cccc........ 146 148 (2
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures...................ccccceuenne.... (6) 25 31
Fund balance at beginning of year................ccceceene. 58 58 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 6 6 0
Fund balance at end of year..............ccccooeveiverencnene. $58 $89 $31
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MARRIAGE LICENSE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for SErViCes..........c.ccocvvvrerieniiieneneienenieniens $200 $202 $2
Total revenues.................occeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiieesinanne 200 202 2
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Charges and Services.............cccoocerienerenencenieenne. 250 214 36
Total expenditures...................ccccceevrcereriesenennnn. 250 214 36
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (50) (12) 38
Fund balance at beginning of year.............c....cooeeee.. 115 115 0
Fund balance atend of year................c.cccooceveeenenenn. $65 $103 $38
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CORONER'S LAB FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Charges for Services............cocevevveninieninicieennee

Total reVENUES..............ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeccireeeeeaaeenn.

Expenditures:
Current:
Health

Materials and supplies............ccccoeeeeieriienieenieenne
Charges and ServiCes...........c.ccoceveeneeveeneeneennen.
Capital outlay and equipment..............cccceveevrennen.

Total expenditures.................ccovceevceeeveerceeeaaeenn,
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year................ccccooeenne.

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......................
Fund balance atend ofyear...............cccceeevieiiiienene

Variance:

Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$212 $334 $122
212 334 122
39 24 15

177 146 31
42 40 2
258 210 48
(46) 124 170
388 388 0
10 10 0
$352 $522 $170




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LAW ENFORCEMENT DRUG FUND- SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeits................ccooiniieinniee, $25 $4 ($21)
Total revenues...................coeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeenann. 25 4 (21)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Charges and services................ccccooeevvevueeveennnnen. 25 - 25
Total expenditures...................cccccoeveeeeeeeereeenn. 25 0 25
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 0 4 4
Fund balance at beginning of year.............................. 14 14 0
Fund balance atend of year..............cccooeoveeveevenennn, $14 $18 $4
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DELINQUENT REAL ESTATE TAX AND ASSESSMENT
COLLECTION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for Services.............ccccocvvreniinienieecneseeennen $800 $767 ($33)
Miscellaneous revenue................cccccoeveeeeviceecreennne.. 800 812 12
Total revenues................ccoeceeeeeeeereverererreennn, 1,600 1,579 (21)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal Services...........cc.oovvveeveeieecceeeeeeeeeen 1,051 981 70
Charges and Services.............c.cccceveeeveeneeerennann. 85 81 4
Materials and supplies..............cccocovvvieiieiiieenn, 739 661 78
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 37 28 9
Total expenditures...................ccccoveeeeeeeeeeeveaennnn. 1,912 1,751 161
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (312) 172) 140
Fund balance at beginning of year................................ 530 530 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 52 52 0
Fund balance atend of year....................ccoooevvvennn. $270 $410 $140
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

TAX INSTALLMENT PAYMENT PLAN - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Miscellaneous revenue...............cccccoeeveeeecieeccineeeeenns

Total revenues...............eeeeeeeeeecveeeeaaeeeeeieeevaaaennn.

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive

Materials and supplies..............c.cccoevvrrienieiennnnne
Charges and Services.............cccocceeeeeieneneenieennen.
Capital outlays and equipment.................ccccccenee
Total expenditures..................ccccoeveeveeeceeserceeannens
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year.................cccccoee.

Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................
Fund balance atend of year..............ccccooevveiiinienen.
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$50 $59 $9
50 59 9
12 3 9
16 8 8
20 20 0
48 31 17
2 28 26
138 138 0
8 8 0
$148 $174 $26




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY PLANNING FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue...............ccccooeeviiiinienene
Miscellaneous revenue................ccccceeeiniennieenieennnen.

Total revenues..................eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeceveennnnn.

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety

Materials and supplies..............ccccoceeeeevieeieneennnn.
Charges and Services............ccccceevvvieecieneeieennnne
Capital outlays and equipment..................c.c.........
Total expenditures..................ccceeeeeeeeeeceveeenenen.
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year..................c..cc........

Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................
Fund balance atend of year..............ccccoeiriiiinnnenn.
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$20 $20 $0
3 3 0
23 23 0
1 1 0
70 23 47
3 - 3
74 24 50
(51) 1) 50
39 39 0
13 13 0
$1 $51 $50




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
INDIGENT GUARDIANSHIP - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue................cccooeevinieneeneeeeen $85 $77 ($8)
Total revenues..................ccceeeeceecueeciceicnieieencnas 85 77 (8)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial
Charges and Services............c.cccovevceciinceenernncenne. 86 73 13
Total expenditures...................ccocevevvreeencsenennn 86 73 13
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 1) 4 5
Fund balance at beginning of year.................ccccoceeeee. 57 57 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 1 1 0
Fund balance atend of year.................c.ccceoevevieerrnnne. $57 $62 $5




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES BOARD - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue...............cccocceecininieneens

Total revenuUES...............cccveeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeecieeeennn.

Expenditures:
Current:
Health

Personal Services............ccccoceeiinieieeciecieeee e,
Materials and supplies...........ccccccovveviiiiienceneene
Charges and Services.............cccceevereerieeieiceniienne
Capital outlay and equipment...................c..ceceee

Total expenditures..................cccceeevecveeeeveseanen.
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year...................

Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year....................co......
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$8,455 $8,691 $236
8,455 8,691 236
384 381 3
10 7 3
8,602 7,915 687
9 8 1
9,005 8,311 694
(550) 380 930
(1,170) (1,170) 0
1,470 1,470 0
($250) $680 $930




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY MR/RES SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue....................ccoceiiiieenn. $5,081 $4,126 ($955)
Totalrevenues.................cccccvevceeeeesieeaiieseaen. 5,081 4,126 (955)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Charges and Services..............ccoccoeeveeiieieeieennne. 5,199 3,770 1,429
Total expenditures...................ccceeveeeeeceeeceraran. 5,199 3,770 1,429
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (118) 356 474
Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year................... (336) (336) 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 518 518 0
Fund balance atend of year.................ccccoooiiiiinns $64 $538 $474
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SENIOR SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES......ceeeveeeeereeeeeete ettt ettt $3,089 $2,898 ($191)
Miscellaneous revenue............c..ccoeveeevenenennenieneenne 68 1 (67)
Total reVENUES...........cooveeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeereeen 3,157 2,899 (258)
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Charges and Services..............ccoceeveeieeieereeeeennnn. 2,901 2,901 0
Total expenditures..................cccoeeeeeemeeeerereenen, 2,901 2,901 0
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 256 (2) (258)
Fund balance at beginning of year.................cccceeeee..e. 11 11 0
Fund balance atend of year.................cceccvevivenennnenn. $267 $9 ($258)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue................cccooeeerirenecnnene. 199 $99 (100)
Total revenues...................ccceevceeceeeveeeeseeieneenaen. 199 99 (100)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal Services.............cccooevevienenenenienee 356 346 10
Materials and supplies...........c.cccceeevieevieiceenneenne 5 4 1
Charges and ServiCes..............cceeceerieereeieeneenieene 1,522 890 632
Capital outlays and equipment.............ccc.ccocevenen. 3 - 3
Total expenditures..................c.cceeveeveceeeeeveeenennns 1,886 1,240 646
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (1,687) (1,141) 546
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in.............ccccecevvvivivcnncncnnne, 1,794 1,794 0
Total other financing sources...................ccce....... 1,794 1,794 0
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other uses.......... 107 653 546
Fund balance at beginning of year................cccccccoene. 546 546 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................ 47 47 0
Fund balance atend of year.............ccccooeeieeennncne $700 $1,246 $546
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
INDIGENT DRIVERS FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeits.............c.ccooeeievieeeieieceeseee, $10 $18 $8
Total revenues..................cooceeeeeneieeveeeeeieeeeen. 10 18 8
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial
Charges and SerViCes............coeeveereeenrieeeeecreeennen. 10 - 10
Total expenditures..................cccoeeeeevceeeeeeecevesnnn, 10 0 10
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 0 18 18
Fund balance at beginning of year.................cccoccoene. 80 80 0
Fund balance atend of year..............ccccoooeevieiiiiennns $80 $98 $18
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MV ENFORCEMENT AND EDUCATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES..........coovvvierreriereieeeeeeeeene $20 $4 ($16)
Total rEVENUES..........c.oveeveeeeesiries e 20 4 (16)
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial
Charges and ServiCes.............cocevververeeecneennennes 20 8 12
Total expenditures.................ccccceeveveevereneeneeeene. 20 8 12
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 0 (4) 4)
Fund balance at beginning of year..............ccccecvvvneeee 32 32 0
Fund balance atend of year................cccccooeeeiniinnnn, $32 $28 ($4)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

BUILDING REGULATIONS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Charges for services............cccccovveieninniecniceeceee

Total revenues................cooceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaan,

Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive

Personal Services..............cccceveveeveeicceceeeen.
Materials and supplies..............ccccceeviviivierieerecnnnn,
Charges and Services..............cccccoecvevrevieere e
Capital outlay and equipment...............................

Total expenditures...................ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeennn.
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year...............................

Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................
Fund balance atend of year............c..ccocooeviniiiennnn,

- m -

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$1,120 $1,245 $125
1,120 1,245 125
969 957 12
31 30 1
319 276 43
36 31 5
1,355 1,294 61
(235) (49) 186
1,013 1,013 0
68 68 0
$846 $1,032 $186




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CERTIFICATE OF TITLE ADMINISTRATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Charges for ServiCes...........cccooevenieiiniinccncer i

Total FEVENUES. ..........cceeveveeeaeeeeeesiaeesieeeeaen

Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive

Personal ServiCes............ccooveiiieiicenicnicnieccee
Materials and supplies............cccceeviiiniiiiicnneenae.
Charges and Services..............cccccoevicciineinnnns
Capital outlay and equipment................cccceeeenn

Total expenditures...................cccoceeceeveeeececeecacns
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year................cccccceeenn.

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......................
Fund balance atend of year................cccooveeieeienncens
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$1,400 $1,524 $124
1,400 1,524 124
1,301 1,244 57
62 30 32
342 205 137
36 31 5
1,741 1,510 231
(341) 14 355
1,182 1,182 0
6 6 0
$847 $1,202 $355




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

RECORDER EQUIPMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Charges for services..............c..c...... et nes

Total revenues.................oeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeirevenaaannn.

Expenditures:
General government:
Legislative and executive

Materials and supplies............ccocoeerieiiieeniecnieene
Charges and ServiCes............cc.cocereerveneecueenreenns
Capital outlays and equipment..............c.ccccceeeee
Total expenditures..................ccoceeeveeecvereecevccuennccn.
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year.................ccccceeveenen.

Prior year encumbrance appropriated..........................
Fund balance atend ofyear..............ccooevveciieinnenen.

- N3 -

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$350 $350 $0
350 350 0
20 11 9
263 177 86
334 101 233
617 289 328
(267) 61 328
652 652 0
23 23 0
$408 $736 $328




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PROBATION SERVICE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:

Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for Services............cccoceevvviiiiecveeeceecee, $100 $138 $38
Total revenues..................oeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenen 100 138 38
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial
Charges and Services...............ccccoeeveevevueerneenennn. 120 105 15
Capital outlays and equipment............................. 10 10 0
Total expenditures...................ccccoeeuveeeeeeereenen.. 130 115 15
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (30) 23 53
Fund balance at beginning of year................c.............. 223 223 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.....................c............ 40 40 0
Fund balance atend of year...............c.ccccocuerrvenennnne... $233 $286 $53
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

JUVENILE FELONY CARE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue...................coeeeeeeniennnn.

Total reVENUES...........ccceeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeiireeeeeeeeannes

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety

Personal SEIVICES............coeveeieiieeriiereeeienecieeneens
Materials and supplies............ccceeeeienienensennee
Charges and Services.............ccocevvvveiiiniiennennnn.
Capital outlays and equipment..............................

Total expenditures..................ccccceevereeercreeinnnns
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year............ccccccconveninns

Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................
Fund balance atend of year............cccccooceeniiiiinncenn.

- N5 —

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$1,715 $1,740 $25
1,715 1,740 25
423 415 8
2 1 1
2,169 2,002 167
5 5 0
2,599 2,423 176
(884) (683) 201
2,210 2,210 0
178 178 0
$1,504 $1,705 $201




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

JUVENILE TREATMENT CENTER - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue...................c..ccccoeennnn.

Total revenues..................cccoeeeeeeeeeeeeceeaeeeeeaaan.

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal services.............c.cccoeveeiiieeicceeceen.
Materials and supplies..............ccccccoovvveiviiieeeen..
Charges and Services..............cccocoeeveeuieeneeeeennnae.
Capital outlays and Equipment...........................

Total expenditures.................cccoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen.
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in..............ccceoeviievneciie
Total other financing sources...............................

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures..................................

Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year...................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................
Fund balance atend of year................ccocoovevvniniie..

- 16 -

Variance:

Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$2,350 $2,406 $56
2,350 2,406 56
1,629 1,602 27
124 120 4
244 232 12

9 8 1
2,006 1,962 44
344 444 100
0 86 86
0 86 86
344 530 186
(357) (357) 0
13 13 0
$0 $186 $186




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FELONY DIVERSION PROGRAM - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue................ccooeeeveireneennneee, 1,050 990 (60)
Totalrevenues.................cccoeeeveeevesieeersrennenn, 1,050 990 (60)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial
Personal services...........c.cccocviiiiiiiiecncecen 833 791 42
Materials and supplies..............c.cccceeveerrnennne. JR 6 6 0
Charges and ServiCes..............ccccvevvevvecreniiieereeneenan, 183 181 2
Capital outlay and equipment.................c..coccoeeee... 1 1 0
Total expenditures..................cooeevvveeveeeeeeeeannnn. 1,023 979 44
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures........ 27 11 (16)
Fund balance at beginning of year..............c..cccccoonee... 7 7 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................ccocoeveennnn... 17 17 0
Fund balance atend of year...................ccocooeviiivinennne. $51 $35 ($16)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CORRECTIONAL TREATMENT FACILITY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue.................ccocoevvieenienennn.

TOtal rEVENUES.............vveeeeeeeereeeeeeeaesiareeaansns

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety

Personal SEIVIiCeS.............ccoovvviierieeieeeeieeneeecee
Materials and SUpPpli€s...........ccoeeveeeceriieniieeeee
Charges and Services..............coeeruececcicinicinnns
Capital outlays and equipment..............................

Total expenditures..................ccccccccecvvcveievereecnenns
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year................ccccoceeeneee

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......................
Fund balance atend of year............c.cccooceeniininennnn.

- 18 -

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$3,582 $3,308 ($274)
3,582 3,308 (274)
2,475 2,397 78
119 93 26
765 720 45
178 177 1
3,537 3,387 150
45 (79) (124)
270 270 0
93 93 0
$408 $284 ($124)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
December 31, 2000

Capital Projects Funds- Capital Projects funds account
for financial resources to be used for the construction or
acquisition of major capital facilities (other than those
finances by proprietary funds and trust funds). The
following are the Capital funds which Lucas County
operates:

Permanent Zoo Improvements- To account for a
county-wide property tax levy used for renovation and
construction of buildings, facilities and infrastructure for the
Toledo Zoo.

Capital Improvements- To account for renovation and
construction of county owned buildings and facilities, and
construction of special assessment projects.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Permanent
Zoo Capital
Improvement Improvements Total
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents...............c.cccoovevennnn. $1 $4,185 $4,186
Pooled investments.............c..oooeiiiiiinieeece e 3 25,246 25,249
Receivables (net of allowances for -
uncollectables)

TAXKES....ooeeeieeeree e et e ettt 6,148 - 6,148

TOtal @SSELS...........oeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $6,152 $29,431 $35,583
Liabilities:
Accounts payable..............cccovrrireeiieeeee s $- $2,685 $2,685
Deferred rEVENUE..........ccuvveieeeeeeeeeee et eree e evea e 6,035 - 6,035
Notes payable...............oooerieiiei - 19,460 19,460

Total lI@bilities...............coocveeviveeerseeiesiesesieaieeie 6,035 22,145 28,180
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances............cccoccvveiieiniceiniinenne - 5,686 5,686
Unreserved-undesignated..............cccooveenervienieiiniiinnnnn. 117 1,600 1,717

Total fund balances.............cccccoveeeeeeeeeceeeeaeeee 117 7,286 7,403

Total liabilities and fund balances........................... $6,152 $29,431 $35,583
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Permanent
Zoo Capital
Improvement Improvements Total
Revenues:
TAXES. ...t $5,718 $- $5,718
Special assesSMeNts...........ccooeiiviiiiieeceeeeeee e - 706 706
Intergovernmental Revenue...............cccccoocoveviniriennann. - 3,291 3,291
Miscellaneous revenue...............ccocooveviieeieeeceeeeeee 2 2,326 2,328
Total revenuess.................ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeevee. 5,720 6,323 12,043
Expenditures
Current:
Capital outlay..............cooooiiiiiiicceee e 5,788 35,728 41,516
Debt service-
Interest and fiscal charges...............cccocooveviiiiiiiiii. - 253 253
Total exXpenditures....................ccoeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeennn. 5,788 35,981 41,769
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures.................. (68) (29,658) (29,726)
Other financing sources:
Proceeds of bonds..............ccoooeiiiiiiiiieic - 1,560 1,560
Operating transfersin................ccocooeeiiiiiiceicee - 12,054 12,054
Operating transfers (OUt)...........cccoooeeiiiiiiiicie - (1,596) (1,596)
Total other financing SOUICEs..................c.cccoevveeevereeenn.. 0 12,018 12,018
Excess of revenue and other financing sources ‘
over (under) expenditures and other uses..................... (68) (17,640) (17,708)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................cccccooein. 185 24,926 25,111
Fund balance atend of year.................c..cccocoeeiiiniccn. $117 $7,286 $7,403
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PERMANENT ZOO IMPROVEMENT - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES. ..ottt ettt $5,530 $5,747 $217
Miscellaneous reVENUE............ccccueeriiieiiieiieiieiiiceie e - 2 2
TOtal FEVENUES.............oveeeeeeeeeee e 5,530 5,749 219
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay-
Construction contracts..........cccooeiiiiiiieeiiee 5,788 5,788 0]
Total expenditures................c.ccccccveceniienicceaiieiieiieins 5,788 5,788 0
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures.................. (258) (39) 219
Fund balance at beginning of year................cccccociins 42 42 0
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year......................coo ($216) $3 $219
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Special asseSSMENtS...............coovviievveeeeeieeeeeeeen, $- $706 $706
Intergovernmental revenue...............ccoeceevieveiiienieien - 3,291 $3,291
Miscellaneous revenue................c..ccoooeveveeiceeiieceeen. 38,313 2,798 (35,515)
Total reVeNnUes..................ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieieeeeen. 38,313 6,795 (31,518)
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outiay-
Construction contracts...............ccoooveevvvieiiciieeeen. 59,907 44,253 15,654
Debt service
Principal retirement................cccooeieiiiee 5,920 5,920 0
Interest and fiscal charges...............c.cccooevveieviiccciccn. 253 253 0
Total expenditures.....................cococeeeveceeeeeceveeeeeaanana., 66,080 50,426 15,654
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.............. (27,767) (43,631) (15,864)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of NOteS............ccoocvevieiiiiiieiceceeeec 20,710 19,460 (1,250)
Proceeds of bONds.............ocoovuiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeen, - 1,560 1,560
Operating transfers in.............c.ccocoeeeiiiiiieeeceeeeeeee. 5,163 12,054 6,891
Operating transfers (Out)..............cccoooeiiiieiiciiice e, (3,657) - 3,657
Total other financing sources (USes)............................. 22,216 33,074 10,858
Excess of revenue and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses..................... (5,551) (10,557) (5,006)
Fund balance at beginn<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>